
 

 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT THE ELEVENTH ANNUAL GENERAL 
MEETING (“AGM”) OF MAHINDRA INTEGRATED BUSINESS SOLUTIONS 
PRIVATE LIMITED WILL BE HELD THROUGH VIDEO CONFERENCING (VC) 
FACILITY/ OTHER AUDIO-VISUAL MEANS (OAVM) ON THURSDAY, 28TH 
JULY, 2022 AT 5:00 P.M. TO TRANSACT THE FOLLOWING BUSINESS: 
 
THE PROCEEDINGS OF THE AGM SHALL BE DEEMED TO BE CONDUCTED 
AT THE REGISTERED OFFICE OF THE COMPANY AT MAHINDRA TOWERS, 
P. K. KURNE CHOWK, WORLI, MUMBAI - 400018 WHICH BE THE DEEMED 
VENUE OF THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING. 
 

 
ORDINARY BUSINESS: 

 

1.  To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company 

for the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2022 including the Audited Balance Sheet 

as at 31st March, 2022, the Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended on that 

date and Reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon. 

 

2. To declare dividend on Equity Shares for the financial year ended 31st March, 2022. 

 

3. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Sanjay Joglekar (DIN: 00209394) who retires by 

rotation and, being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment. 

 
SPECIAL BUSINESS: 

 

4. Appointment of Mr. Nikhil Madgavkar (DIN: 05163088) as Director of the 

Company 

 

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s) the following 
resolution as an Ordinary Resolution: 

 
“RESOLVED THAT in accordance with the provisions of section 152 and all other 
applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Nikhil Madgavkar (DIN: 
05163088) who was appointed by the Board of Directors as an Additional Director of 
the Company with effect from 1st October, 2021 and consequently designated as 
Managing Director and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and who holds 
office upto the date of this Annual General Meeting of the Company in terms of section 
161 of the Companies Act, 2013 and in respect of whom the Company has received a 



 

 

Notice in writing from a Member under section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013 
proposing his candidature for the office of Director of the Company, be and is hereby 
appointed as a Director of the Company, liable to retire by rotation.” 
 

5. Payment of Commission to Independent Directors of the Company 

 
To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s) the following 
resolution as an Ordinary Resolution: 
 
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 197, 198 read with Schedule 
V and other applicable provisions, if any, (including any statutory modifications or 
amendments or re-enactments thereof, for the time being in force) of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and the applicable Rules made thereunder, the Articles of Association of the 
Company, ‘Policy on Appointment of Directors and Senior Management and 
Succession planning for orderly succession to the Board and the Senior Management’ 
and ‘Policy for Remuneration of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other 
employees’ and subject to the approval of the Central Government, if required as per 
any law, and such other approval(s), permission(s) and sanction(s), as may be required 
and subject to such conditions and modifications, as may be prescribed or imposed by 
any of the authority(ies) while granting such approval(s), permission(s) and 
sanction(s) and as approved by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, Audit 
Committee with respect to the related party transaction and the Board, consent of the 
Shareholders of the Company, be and is hereby accorded that an amount of Rs.  5 Lakhs 
be paid by way of commission to each of the Independent Directors of the Company, 
Mr. Rahul Asthana and Ms. Neera Saggi for the financial year ended 31st March, 2022, 
from out of the net profits of the Company, computed in the manner referred to in 
sections 197 and 198 and all other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 
which is subject to the adoption of the Financial Statements of the Company as on 31st 
March, 2022 by the Shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. 
 

  



 

 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT approval of the Members be accorded to the Board of 

Directors of the Company to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things and to take all 

such steps as may be required in this connection including seeking all necessary 

approvals to give effect to this Resolution and to settle any questions, difficulties or 

doubts that may arise in this regard.” 

                                                                                          For and on Behalf of the Board 

 

 

 

                                                                                                                     S. Durgashankar 

                                                                                                                               Chairman 

 

Registered Office: Mahindra Towers, P. K. Kurne Chowk, Worli, Mumbai - 400 018 

CIN: U73100MH2011PTC212468 

Email id: iyer.gayathri@mahindra.com 

Tel: 022 2490 5828 

 

Date: 28th April, 2022 

Place: Mumbai 
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NOTES 
 

1) In view of the guidelines provided by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs 
(“MCA”) vide its General Circular No.14/2020 dated 8th April, 2020, General 
Circular No.17/2020 dated 13th April, 2020,  General Circular No.20/2020 dated 
5th May, 2020, General Circular No. 02/2021 dated 13th January, 2021,  General 
Circular No. 19/2021 dated 8th December, 2021, General Circular No. 21/2021 
dated  14th December, 2021  and General Circular No. 02/2022 dated 5th May, 
2022 (collectively referred to as ‘MCA Circulars’) has permitted holding of the 
Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) through Video Conferencing (“VC”) / 
Other Audio Visual Means (“OAVM”), without the physical presence of the 
Members at a common venue.  
 
The MCA has clarified that for Companies that are not required to provide E-
voting facility under the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) while they are 
transacting any business(es) by voting at the General Meeting, the requirements 
provided in the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, as 
amended up to date as well as the framework provided in the MCA Circulars 
will be applicable.  
 
With reference to the above, the General meeting of the Company is being held 
through VC / OAVM in compliance with the provisions of the Act read with 
Rules made thereunder and aforementioned MCA Circulars and the 
proceedings of the Meeting shall be deemed to be held at the venue as 
mentioned in the Notice of Annual General Meeting (“AGM”). 
 
Notice of the AGM and Annual Report will be sent via e-mail to all Members as 
per e-mail addresses registered with the Company. 
 
The Notice of the AGM along with the Annual Report 2021-22 is uploaded and 
available electronically on the Company’s website at: www.mibs.in 
 

2) The Company’s Registrar and Transfer Agents for its share registry work 
(Electronic) are KFin Technologies Limited having its office at Selenium, Tower 
B, Plot nos. 31 & 32, Financial District, Nanakramguda, Serilingampally, 
Hyderabad, Rangareddi, Telangana – 500032, and contact details as: Tel: 040 – 
67162222, Fax: 040 – 23001153 and Email id: einward.ris@kfintech.com; 
karisma@kfintech.com; 
 

http://www.mibs.in/


 

 

3) Details of Directors seeking appointment / reappointment at the 11th Annual 
General Meeting in pursuance of provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 are 
given as an Annexure to the Notice. 
 

4) An Explanatory Statement as required under section 102 of the Companies Act, 
2013, is annexed hereto. 

 
5) The Board has recommended Dividend @ 7.16% for the year ended on 31st 

March, 2022, i.e. Rs. 0.716/- per equity share on 97,79,511 fully paid-up equity 
shares of Rs. 10 each aggregating to Rs. 70 Lakhs. 
 

6) The dividend declared at the Annual general Meeting would be paid to those 
persons whose names appear as Beneficial Owners as at the end of the business 
hours on Thursday, 28th July, 2022 in the list of Beneficial Owners to be 
furnished by National Securities Depository Limited and Central Depository 
Services (India) Limited in respect of the shares held in electronic form and 
whose names appear as Members in the Register of Members of the Company 
as at the end of the business hours on Thursday, 28th July, 2022.  

 
7) There is no unpaid and unclaimed Dividend of earlier years which has been 

transferred during the financial year 2021-22 or due to be transferred to the 
Investor Education and Protection Fund (“IEPF”) during the financial year 
2022-23 in terms of the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) 
read with the IEPF Authority (Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 
2016, as amended from time to time. Further no shares on which dividend has 
not been paid or claimed for seven consecutive years or more has been 
transferred or is due to be transferred to IEPF during the financial year 2022-23 
in terms of the applicable provisions of the Act read with the IEPF Rules, as 
amended from time to time.  

 
8) Since this AGM is being held through VC / OAVM where physical attendance 

of Members has been dispensed with, there is no requirement of appointment 
of proxies. Accordingly, the facility of appointment of proxies by the Members 
will not be available for this AGM and hence the Proxy Form and Attendance 
Slip are not annexed to this Notice. 
 

9) Members are entitled to attend and vote by show of hands, if permitted by the 
Chairman of the Meeting. Further, where a poll is required/demanded, the 
Members shall communicate their assent/ dissent on the agenda items of this 
Annual General Meeting by sending an email to baria.feroze@mahindra.com  

mailto:baria.feroze@mahindra.com


 

 

(“Designated email ID”) with cc to iyer.gayathri@mahindra.com and 
biswal.grisma@mahindra.com. 
 

10) Members attending the AGM through VC / OAVM shall be counted for the 
purpose of reckoning the quorum under Section 103 of the Act. 
 

11) Since the AGM will be held through VC / OAVM, the Route Map is not annexed 
in this Notice. 
 

12) The facility for joining the meeting shall be kept open at least 15 minutes before 
the time scheduled to start the meeting and shall not be closed till the expiry of 
15 minutes after such scheduled time. The facility of participating of the AGM 
through VC will be made available to all the members of the Company. 
 

13) The Members will be allowed to pose questions during the course of the 
Meeting. The queries can also be given in advance to the designated email id. 
 

14) Members can join the Meeting by clicking on the link provided in the email 
containing the notice convening this AGM of the Shareholders. The standard 
operating procedure on how to access and participate in the Meeting along with 
IT helpline number for joining the Meeting through VC/ OAVM will also be 
provided in the email containing the notice of this AGM. 
 

15) Members are requested to update their change in contact details including 
email address and Bank details, if any, by sending a request to the 
aforementioned designated email ids. 
 

16) Members seeking any information with regard to the accounts or any matter to 
be placed at the AGM, are requested to write to the Company through their 
registered email IDs on designation email ID any time before and during the 
meeting.  
 

17) Corporate members intending to attend the meeting through their authorized 
representatives as per Section 113 of the Companies Act, 2013 are requested to 
email to iyer.gayathri@mahindra.com and biswal.grisma@mahindra.com, a 
certified copy of the Board Resolution authorizing their representative to attend 
and vote on their behalf at the Meeting. 
 

18) For inspection of the Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and 
their shareholding, maintained under Section 170 of the Act and the Register of 
Contracts or Arrangements in which Directors are interested, maintained under 

mailto:iyer.gayathri@mahindra.com
mailto:biswal.grisma@mahindra.com
mailto:iyer.gayathri@mahindra.com
mailto:biswal.grisma@mahindra.com


 

 

Section 189 of the Act, Register of Members under section 171 or other 
documents as referred in this Notice, the members may send their request on 
the designated email ID any time before and during the meeting. 

 
For and on Behalf of the Board 

 

 

 

 

S. Durgashankar 

Chairman 

 

Registered Office: Mahindra Towers, P. K. Kurne Chowk, Worli, Mumbai - 400 018 

CIN: U73100MH2011PTC212468 

Email id: iyer.gayathri@mahindra.com 

Tel: 022 2490 5828 

 

Date: 28th April, 2022 

Place: Mumbai 
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ANNEXURE TO THE NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 
============================================================== 
Details of Director seeking re-appointment at the 11th Annual General Meeting in 
pursuance of provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.  
 
ITEM NO. 3 

Mr. Sanjay Joglekar (DIN: 00209394), Director of the Company, is liable to retire by 
rotation and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment at the 11th Annual 
General Meeting of the Company. 

 

Particulars of Mr. Sanjay Joglekar as required under the Secretarial Standard on 
General Meetings (SS – 2) are given below: 
 

Name Mr. Sanjay Joglekar 

Age 66 Years 

Qualifications Chartered Accountant 

Experience Sanjay Joglekar has about 37 years of industry 

experience in M&A in India & Europe, Cultural 

Integration, HR, Finance, Operations and 

Investor relations with large Manufacturing 

Organizations. He retired in September 2016 to 

pursue passion and interest that had taken a back 

seat in the busy professional life.  

From 1980 to 2016 he has been on Boards of 

several listed and unlisted companies and have a 

rich Multi-functional experience in all facets of 

business. He has been Executive Director - 

Resources (HR, Finance, IT & Purchase) in FAG 

Bearings India Ltd; Director - Operations in 

Welspun Stahl Rohren Ltd; CFO, Secretarial & 

Legal, Business strategy and Investor relations in 

M&M – Auto Comp; later in Mahindra CIE 

Automotive Ltd. He has also been on Boards of 

several Mahindra group companies in India, 

Europe, Australia & Mauritius and have also 

played effective role in safeguarding and 



 

 

promoting Group Investments as well as culture 

of Governance. 

He has been a Project leader for creating Auto 

Component entity in M&M by acquisitions in 

India & Europe and Project leader for executing 

global alliance between Mahindra Group, India 

and CIE Automotive, Spain which resulted in 

immense value creation.  

He also led Organisational Restructuring projects 

and Institutionalized Systems & Processes. He 

has been a member of Talent Management Core 

Group in Finance & Accounts at M&M  

Engaging with People has been a craving for him 

and since 2016, he has been practicing as an 

Executive Coach and as an Associate Certified 

Coach (ACC) - certified by International Coach 

Federation, USA. He is certified in NLP (Neuro 

Linguistic Programming) which explores into 

how thoughts (neuro) are affected by words 

(linguistic) leading to actions (programming). 

He is a Trustee in a Pune based public charitable 

trust named SANTULAN for prevention of 

addiction and treatment and rehabilitation of 

alcoholic and drug addicts. 

Terms & conditions of 

appointment and re-

appointment  

Non-Executive and Non-Independent Director, 
liable to retire by rotation. 

Details of Remuneration sought 

to be paid 

Sitting fees for attending Board meetings as 
approved by the Board 
 

Details of Remuneration last 

drawn 

Sitting fees of Rs. 2,10,000/- was paid for Board 
meetings attended by him during Financial year 
2021-22 

Date of first appointment on the 

Board  

22nd February, 2012 



 

 

Shareholding in the company  Nil 

Relationship with other 

Directors, Manager and other 

Key Managerial Personnel 

(KMPs) of the Company  

N.A. 

 

The number of Meetings of the 

Board attended during the year  

 

7 (out of 7 Board meetings held) 

Other Directorships, 

Membership/ Chairmanship of 

Committees of other Boards 

(Except Mahindra Integrated 

Business Solutions Private 

Limited)  

Details of other Directorships – Nil 
 
Details of other Memberships of Committees- Nil 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 
EXPLANATORY STATEMENT ANNEXED TO THE NOTICE PURSUANT TO 
SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 
============================================================== 

ITEM NO. 4 

At the Board meeting held on 28th September, 2021, Mr. Nikhil Madgavkar (DIN: 
05163088) was (i) appointed as an Additional Director of the Company with effect from 
1st October, 2021 under section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013 to hold office up to the 
date of the next Annual General Meeting of the Company or the last date on which the 
Annual General Meeting of the Company should have been held, whichever is earlier; 
and, was (ii) consequently appointed as Managing Director and Key Managerial 
Personnel of the Company, liable to retire by rotation, for a period of 3 years with effect 
from 1st October, 2021 to 30th September, 2024 (both days inclusive) which was subject 
to approval of the shareholders under section 196 of the Companies Act, 2013. 
 
Thereafter, the Company at its Extra-ordinary General Meeting held on 2nd November, 
2021, approved his appointment as the Managing Director (“MD”) and Key 
Managerial Personnel (“KMP”) of the Company, liable to retire by rotation, for a 
period of three (3) years with effect from 1st October, 2021 to 30th September, 2024 (both 
days inclusive) including his terms and conditions and remuneration payable as 
Managing Director/KMP of the Company as per the provisions of Sections 196, 197, 
198 and 203 of the Companies act, 2013. 
 
The Company has received Notice in writing under Section 160 of the Companies Act, 
2013 from a Member signifying intention to propose Mr. Nikhil Madgavkar as 
candidate for the office of Directorship of the Company, liable to retire by rotation, at 
the forthcoming Annual General Meeting. 
 
Mr. Nikhil Madgavkar has given his consent to act as Director of the Company and 
has given requisite declarations pursuant to Section 164 of the Companies Act, 2013 
that he is not disqualified to be appointed as Director of the Company. 
 
The following additional information is provided in respect of Mr. Nikhil Madgavkar 
(DIN: 05163088):- 
 

Name Mr. Nikhil Madgavkar 

Age 58 Years 

Qualifications B.com, LL.B, Chartered Accountant 



 

 

Experience A finance professional with global 
experience of approx. 34 years in 
“Enabling Transformation” leading to 
“Profitable Growth”. As a thought leader 
also enables creation of high-performance 
teams.  
 
Nikhil is currently the Managing Director 
of Mahindra Integrated Business 
Solutions Pvt. Ltd. (MIBS) and Executive 
Vice President, Global Shared Services, for 
Mahindra Group. Prior to his current role, 
for 6 years he was Executive Vice 
President and CFO for Mahindra & 
Mahindra (Farm Equipment Sector) and 
Chief Risk Officer for the Group for a year. 
(In the interim, for one year he played a 
dual role). Before joining Mahindra 
Group, he was the CFO for Mother Dairy 
(leading company in Dairy/Foods/FMCG 
industry) for 5 years and prior to that was 
with Philips Electronics in India and UK, 
as the Finance Director for UK & Ireland 
based in London for last 21 years. 
 
Commended by Global CEO of Philips 
Electronics for achieving High Employee 
Engagement scores and Philips 
Leadership Index in 2007. Recipient of 
“India CFO Award” by IMA in March 
2013.  
 
He has also been an active member in 
Industry associations and penned articles 
for various journals. Also participated 
widely in various CFO forums and has 
been a lead/panelist speaker in various 
conferences including World Economic 
Forum, FICCI & CII. 
 



 

 

He has also been the Program Director for 
CFO Conference being organized by Delhi 
Management Association with knowledge 
Partner EY in November 2013 and 
Committee member for CII’s Cost 
Congress 2013. He had also been on the 
CII’s National Committee of CFO’s   

Terms & conditions of Appointment 
and Re-appointment (along with 
details of remuneration sought to be 
paid and the remuneration last drawn 
by such person, if applicable) 

Appointed as an Additional Director and 

consequently as Managing Director and 

Key Managerial Personnel on the Board of 

Directors of the Company for a term of 

three years w.e.f. 1st October, 2021 upto 

30th September, 2024, liable to retire by 

rotation as per provision of the Companies 

Act, 2013 at a remuneration of Rs. 110 

Lakhs per annum in the scale of Rs. 110 

Lakhs to Rs. 150 Lakhs per annum. 

 

The above remuneration may include 

salary, perquisites, allowances, benefits, 

amenities and facilities etc. as per 

Company’s/ Mahindra Group 

Companies’ Policy. 

 

Remuneration last drawn – In reference to 

Remuneration enumerated above, the 

remuneration last drawn by him was Rs. 

37,97,950 for the Financial year 2021-22  

Date of first appointment on the Board  1st October, 2021 

Shareholding in the company  Nil 

Relationship with other Directors, 

Manager and other Key Managerial 

Personnel (KMPs) of the company  

No relation with other Directors, Manager 

and Key Managerial Personnel of the 

Company. 

The number of Meetings of the Board 

attended during the year  

4 (out of 4 meetings) 



 

 

Other Directorships, Membership/ 

Chairmanship of Committees of other 

Boards (Except Mahindra Integrated 

Business Solutions Private Limited)  

Details of other Directorships – 

1. Mahindra Heavy Engines Ltd 

2. Trringo.com Limited 

3. Mahindra Fresh Fruits Distribution 

Holding Company (Europe) B. V. 

4. OFD Holding B.V. 

 

Details of other Memberships of 

Committees – Member of Audit and CSR 

Committee of Mahindra Heavy Engines 

Limited 

  
Considering Mr. Nikhil Madgavkar’s profile, years of relevant experience, knowledge, 
capabilities and synergies with the Mahindra Group, the Board was of the view that 
his appointment as MD and KMP of the Company with direct operational 
responsibility was in the interest of the Company and would be of value to the 
functioning of the Board/Company.  
 
He being appointed as Additional Director under Section 161 of the Companies Act, 
2013 and consequently designated as MD and KMP of the Company under Section 196 
of the Companies Act, 2013, it is imperative to regularize him as Director of the 
Company and the Board therefore, recommends the appointment of Mr. Nikhil 
Madgavkar as Director of the Company to the members as an Ordinary Resolution. 
 
The Notice received from a Member signifying intention to propose Mr. Nikhil 
Madgavkar as candidate for the office of Directorship of the Company is open for 
inspection and the members may send their request for inspection on the designated 
email IDs any time before and during the meeting.  
 
Mr. Nikhil Madgavkar and his relatives are interested in this resolution as it pertains 
to his appointment as Director of the Company.  
 
None of the other Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their 

relatives are, in any way, concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in this 

Resolution. 

  



 

 

ITEM NO. 5 

Mr. Rahul Asthana (DIN: 00234247) and Ms. Neera Saggi (DIN: 00501029) were 

appointed as Additional Directors in the capacity of Non-Executive Independent 

Directors with effect from 28th December, 2020, for a consecutive period of 3 years i.e. 

upto 27th December, 2023 and were regularized at the 10th Annual General Meeting 

held on 26th July, 2021 as Independent Directors of the Company for the said period. 

 

The Shareholders of the Company at the 10th Annual General Meeting held on 26th 
July, 2021 had approved the payment of commission of Rs. 5 lakhs per annum to each 
of the Independent Directors of the Company, Mr. Rahul Asthana and Ms. Neera Saggi 
for the financial year ended 31st March, 2021 on proportionate basis from the date of 
their appointment, i.e. for the period from 28th December, 2020 to 31st March, 2021. 
 

As per the provisions of Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013, the remuneration 

payable to directors who are neither managing directors nor whole-time directors shall 

not exceed— 

(a)  one per cent of the net profits of the company, if there is a managing or whole-

time director or manager; 

(b) three per cent of the net profits in any other case. 

 

Such commission would be distributed amongst and paid to the aforesaid Directors in 

such proportions as they may, from time to time, decide between themselves. 

 

In the presence of Managing Director being appointed in the Company, the 

permissible limit of commission payable to Non-executive Directors including 

Independent Directors in the Company shall not exceed in aggregate 1% of the Net 

profit of the Company. 

 

Considering the contribution of Ms. Neera Saggi and Mr. Rahul Asthana as 

Independent Directors of the Company in the Board processes and active participation 

in the meetings, their expertise and experience and pursuant to the provisions of 

Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rules made thereunder and other 

applicable provisions and with a view to reward and motivate them, it is proposed for 

payment of commission of Rs. 5 Lakhs to each of the Independent Directors of the 

Company, Mr. Rahul Asthana and Ms. Neera Saggi for the financial year ended 31st 

March, 2022.  



 

 

 
The commission payable/proposed for the financial year 2021-22 will be within the 
limits referred to, and in accordance with the provisions of the sections 197 (i.e. 
commission to Non-executive Directors including Independent Directors not 
exceeding 1% of the net profit and overall managerial remuneration not exceeding 11% 
of net profit for FY 2021-22) and 198 read with Schedule V and all other applicable 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 which is subject to approval of the members to 
be obtained at this Annual General Meeting of the Company by way of ordinary 
resolution. 
 
Further, the proposed commission is in line with the ‘Policy on Appointment of 
Directors and Senior Management and Succession planning for orderly succession to 
the Board and the Senior Management’ and ‘Policy for Remuneration of the Directors, 
Key Managerial Personnel and other employees’ as adopted by the Company and in 
line with the policy of “Guidelines for Directors Compensation” as applicable to 
Mahindra Group entities. 
 
The Board of Directors at their meeting held on 28th April, 2022 on recommendation of 
the Nomination and Remuneration Committee Meeting and Audit Committee (for 
approval as related party transaction) at their respective meetings held on the same 
day, approved Rs. 5 Lakhs to be paid by way of commission to each of the Independent 
Directors of the Company for the financial year ended 31st March, 2022 out of the net 
profits of the Company, computed in the manner referred to in sections 197 and 198 
and all other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 which is subject to the 
adoption of the Financial Statements of the Company as on 31st March, 2022 by the 
Shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. 
 

The Independent Directors of the Company are also paid sitting fees for attending 

every meeting of the Board and Committee thereof. 

 

The Brief profile alongwith additional information as required under Secretarial 

Standard-1 in respect of Mr. Rahul Asthana (DIN: 00234247) and Ms. Neera Saggi 

(DIN: 00501029) are provided below:-  



 

 

 

Name Mr. Rahul Asthana Ms. Neera Saggi 

Age 69 Years 65 Years 

Qualifications Bachelor of Technology (B.Tech) – Major in 
Aeronautical Engineering from Indian Institute 
of Technology, Kanpur and MBA from 
International Center for Promotion of 
Enterprises University of Ljubljana, Slovenia. 

Bachelor of Arts (Hons.) and completed Master 
of Business Administration, International Centre 
of Public Enterprise, Ljubljana, Slovenia 
(Sponsored by GOI- UNDP). She also holds 
Master in English Literature from the Delhi 
University. 

Experience Mr. Rahul Asthana has served as Commissioner 
of Mumbai Metropolitan Regional 
Development Authority (MMRDA) from 2011-
2013 wherein he had a primary role of planning 
for the Mumbai Metropolitan region and 
implementation of large infrastructure projects 
Planning and regulation of development in 
areas like Cuffe Parade, Bandra Kurla Complex, 
etc. He was the Chairman of Mumbai Port Trust 
from 2008-2011 and headed Operations and 
Management of Mumbai Port. 
 
He was the Principal Secretary – Energy of 
Government of Maharashtra – Dept. Of Energy 
in 2007-2008. He was the Financial controller of 

Ms. Neera Saggi has an extensive experience in 
both public and private sector, Ms. Neera Saggi 
joined the IAS in 1980. For Twenty-eight years 
she worked within the government with multiple 
stakeholders and in different sectors including 
health, commerce, shipping and ports. She was 
District Magistrate, Hooghly in West Bengal, Dy. 
Chairperson of the Jawaharlal Nehru Port Trust 
(JNPT), CMD of Hindustan Diamond 
Corporation and Development Commissioner of 
SEZ for the Western Region. In her recent 
assignment she was working as a CEO in L & T 
Seawoods Private Limited since 2008.  



 

 

Govt of India Dept. of Atomic Energy from 2002 
to 2007, Chief Executive of Bombay Electric 
Supply & Transport from 1999 to 2002 and 
Additional Commissioner of Municipal Corpn. 
of Greater Mumbai in 1998-1999. 

She was elected as the First Women President of 
Bombay Chamber of Commerce and Industry 
(BCCI), in the Chamber’s history of 168 years. 

Terms & conditions of appointment 
and re-appointment  

Appointed as an Independent Director on the 
Board of Directors of the Company w.e.f. 28th 
December, 2020, not liable to retire by rotation 
as per provision of the Companies Act, 2013 for 
a consecutive period of 3 years i.e. upto 27th  
December, 2023.  

Appointed as an Independent Director on the 
Board of Directors of the Company w.e.f. 28th 
December, 2020, not liable to retire by rotation as 
per provision of the Companies Act, 2013 for a 
consecutive period of 3 years i.e. upto 27th  
December, 2023.  

Details of Remuneration sought to be 
paid 

Sitting fees for attending Board/ Committee 
meetings, on same terms as is applicable to 
Independent Directors. 
 
Payment of Commission as determined each 
year by the Board and thereafter approved by 
the Members of the Company for Independent 
Directors 

Sitting fees for attending Board/ Committee 
meetings, on same terms as is applicable to 
Independent Directors. 
 
Payment of Commission as determined each year 
by the Board and thereafter approved by the 
Members of the Company for Independent 
Directors 

Details of Remuneration last drawn Remuneration paid during the financial year 
2021-22 by way of sitting fees is Rs. 3,80,000 
Lakhs and towards commission is Rs. 1,28,767 
(for FY 20-21) as paid in FY 2021-22 

Remuneration paid during the financial year 
2021-22 by way of sitting fees is Rs. 4,30,000 
Lakhs and towards commission is Rs. 1,28,767 
(for FY 20-21) as paid in FY 2021-22 



 

 

Date of first appointment on the 
Board  

28th December, 2020 28th December, 2020 

Shareholding in the company  Nil Nil 

Relationship with other Directors, 
Manager and other Key Managerial 
Personnel (KMPs) of the Company  

None None 
 

The number of Meetings of the Board 
attended during the year  

6 (out of 7 Board meetings) 7 (out of 7 Board meetings) 

Other Directorships, Membership/ 
Chairmanship of Committees of other 
Boards (excluding the Company, 
Mahindra Integrated Business 
Solutions Private Limited)  

Details of other Directorships: 
1. Mahindra Waste to Energy Solutions Limited 
2. Aegis Logistics Limited 
3. NBS International Limited 
4. Indigrid Investment Managers Limited 
 
Details of other Chairmanship and 
Memberships of Committee of other Boards: 
1. NBS International Limited: Member of Audit 
Committee and Nomination & Remuneration 
Committee. 
2. Mahindra Waste to Energy Solutions Limited: 
Member of Audit Committee and Nomination 
& Remuneration Committee. 
3. Aegis Logistics Ltd: Member of Nomination 
& Remuneration Committee. 

Details of other Directorships: 
1. GE T&D India Limited  
2. Swaraj Engines Limited  
3. Tata Projects Limited   
4. Honeywell Automation India Limited 
5. LTIDPL Indvit Services Limited 
 
Details of other Chairmanship and Memberships 
of Committee of other Boards: 
1. Swaraj Engines Ltd: Member of Audit 
Committee and Chairperson of Risk 
Management Committee 
2. Tata Projects Limited: Member of Audit & 
Stakeholder Relationship Committee and 
Chairperson of Nomination and Remuneration 



 

 

4. Indigrid Investment Manager Limited: 
Member of Audit Committee and Chairman of 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee 

Committee & Corporate Social Responsibility 
Committee.  
3. GE T&D India Limited: Member of Audit & 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee and 
Chairperson of Risk Management Committee. 
4. Honeywell Automation India Limited: 
Chairperson of Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee; Member of Audit, Corporate Social 
Responsibility & Risk Management Committee. 
5. LTIDPL IndvIT Services Limited: Member of 
Audit, Stakeholder Relationship, Risk 
Management, Corporate Social Responsibility 
and Project Review Committee.  



 

 

Mr. Rahul Asthana and Ms. Neera Saggi and their relatives are interested in this 

resolution as it pertains to payment of commission to Independent Directors of the 

Company.  

None of the other Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their 

relatives are, in any way, concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in this 

Resolution. 

The Directors recommends passing of the Resolution at Item No. 5 as an Ordinary 

Resolution. 

For and on Behalf of the Board 

 

 

S. Durgashankar 

Chairman 

 

Registered Office: Mahindra Towers, P. K. Kurne Chowk, Worli, Mumbai - 400 018 

CIN: U73100MH2011PTC212468 

Email id: iyer.gayathri@mahindra.com 

Tel: 022 2490 5828 

 

Date: 28th April, 2022 

Place: Mumbai 
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS 

 

Your Directors present their Eleventh Annual Report along with the Standalone Audited Financial Statements of 

your Company for the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2022. 

 

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS AND STATE OF COMPANY’S AFFAIRS 

                                                                                                                               (Rs. in Lakhs) 

Particulars For the year 

ended 31st 

March, 2022 

For the year 

ended 31st 

March, 2021 

Revenue from Operations 42,719.05 19,675.81 

Other Income 57.32 157.97 

Profit/ (Loss) before Depreciation, Interest and Tax 2,925.24 1050.93 

Less: Depreciation 1,081.99 490.14 

Profit/ (Loss) before Interest and Tax 1,843.25 560.79 

Less: Interest expense 54.49 45.04 

Profit/ (Loss) before Tax 1,788.75 515.75 

Provision for Tax   

— Current Tax 506.67 178.85 

— Deferred Tax (18.79) (8.19) 

Profit/ (Loss) for the year after Tax 1,300.87 345.09 

Other Comprehensive Income 19.94 10.19 

Total comprehensive income for the year 19.94 10.19 

Profit available for Appropriation 1,320.81 355.28 

Less: Dividend on Equity Shares 49.97 22.50 

Less: Income Tax on Dividend - - 

Retained earnings brought forward from earlier years 13,584.05 881.90 

Retained earnings arising due to business combination  0 12,359.18 

Foreign Currency Translation Reserve 241.48 10.19 

Retained Earnings carried to Balance Sheet 15,096.38 13,584.05 

Net Worth 16,074.33 14,562.00 

 

No material changes and commitments have occurred after the closure of the financial year under review to which 

the financial statements relate till the date of this report which would affect the financial position of the Company. 

 

DIVIDEND 

 

Your Directors are pleased to recommend a dividend of Rs. 0.716/- (previous year Rs. 0.511/-) per Equity Share 

i.e. 7.16 % (previous year 5.11 %), on the fully paid-up equity shares for the financial year ended 31st March, 2022 

aggregating to Rs. 70 Lakhs. The total equity dividend for the year under review will absorb a sum of Rs. 70 

Lakhs (previous year Rs. 50 lakhs). 

 

The above dividend, if approved by the members at the ensuing Annual General Meeting, shall be paid to those 

members, whose names appear in the Register of Members of the Company as on the record date fixed for this 

purpose i.e. 28th July, 2022, the date of the Annual General Meeting of the Company.  

 

There is no unpaid dividend of earlier years which has been transferred or due to be transferred to Investor 

Education and Protection Fund during the year. 

 



 

 

AMOUNTS TRANSFERRED TO RESERVES 

 

The Board of Directors have decided not to transfer any amount to General Reserves for the year under review.  

 

OPERATIONS 

 

The Company is into Advisory and Business Process Management with expertise in the areas of Finance & 

Accounts, Human Resources and Customer Services processes for Clients within and outside the Mahindra Group. 

The lines of business of the Company include Accounts Payable, Accounts Receivable, Accounting services, 

Recruitment, Payroll services, Labour compliance services, Employee Benefits management, Staffing, 

Telemarketing and Tele-services, Digitization and Back-office services. The Company operates through its 4800+ 

people based out of its own offices and Client premises. 

 

MIBS has two independent branches in US & UK. US & UK Branch is engaged in designing, engineering & 

development of Vehicles capable of production, and deliver complete Vehicle programs for M&M in accordance 

with the concept sketches, written briefs, drawings, and other specifications provided by M&M 

 

During the year under review, total revenue increased from Rs.1,96,75,81,000(previous year) to Rs. 

4,27,19,05,037 registering a healthy growth of 117.11% over the previous year. The net profit after tax was Rs. 

3,45,09,000 as compared to Rs. 13,00,87,000 in the previous year. Figures of previous year includes operation of 

US branch for 3 months whereas current year figure includes operation of US branch for 12 months and UK 

branch for 10 months hence previous year’s figures are not comparable with current year’s figures. 

 

In the situation caused by the COVID-19 pandemic, the Company was well equipped to overcome the crisis with 

minimal business impact. The Company has ensured that all the employees were enabled to work from home to 

ensure delivery of the various service level agreements signed with respective clients. The Company does not 

have any impact on Revenue or Profits in the financial year 2021-22 and doesn’t have any impact on the going 

concern assumption especially since the Company will continue to have a positive net worth and EBITDA 

margins. 

 

OUTLOOK FOR THE CURRENT YEAR 

 

Leadership of MIBS is working towards making MIBS as a High performing organization with an endeavor to 

make MIBS as a Highly Technology driven company and concentrating on quality of delivery to imbibe a culture 

of first time right. On the people front, the Company is investing in training to make people future ready and 
creating a full plan for succession planning for the key roles. This will enable MIBS to deliver “Profitable Growth” 

with Excellence in costs, quality and delivery & make MIBS a “Great Place to Work”. 

 

SHARE CAPITAL 

 

During the year, the Authorized Share Capital of your Company stood at Rs. 10,00,00,000 (Rupees Ten Crores 

only) comprising of 1,00,00,000 Equity Shares of the face value of Rs. 10 each. The Issued and Paid-up Share 

Capital of the Company is Rs. 9,77,95,110 (Rupees Nine Crore Seventy-Seven Lakhs Ninety-Five Thousand One 

Hundred Ten only) comprising of 97,79,511 Equity Shares of the face value of Rs. 10 each.  

 

The Authorized Share Capital as well as Paid up Share Capital of your Company has not changed during the year 

under review. 

 

 

 

 



 

 

HOLDING COMPANY, SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES  

 

Mahindra Vehicle Manufacturers Limited (MVML), the Holding Company and Mahindra & Mahindra Limited 

(M&M), the Ultimate Holding Company had filed the NCLT Order approving the Scheme of Merger by Absorption 

of MVML with M&M (Scheme) with the Registrar of Companies, Mumbai through MCA portal on 1st July 2021. 

Accordingly, the said Scheme became effective on 1st July, 2021, pursuant to which MVML ceased to be a separate 

entity from 1st July, 2021 upon the Merger becoming Effective.  

 

Consequent to the above, M&M became the direct Holding Company of the Company w.e.f. 1st July, 2021.  

 

The Company has no Subsidiaries, Associate or Joint Ventures as on 31st March, 2022. 

 

During the year, none of the companies have become or ceased to be Subsidiaries, Associates or Joint Ventures 

of the Company. 

 

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

The requirements of consolidated financial statements are not applicable to your Company as your Company does 

not have any Subsidiaries, Associates and Joint Ventures. 

 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 

The Composition of the Board of Directors, as at the end of the Financial year under review, i.e. as on 31st March, 

2022 were as follows: 

 

SR. 

NO. 

 

NAME OF 

DIRECTORS 

 

DIN DESIGNATION 

 

EXECUTIVE/NON-

EXECUTIVE 

INDEPENDENT/ 

NON-

INDEPENDENT 

1. Mr. S. 

Durgashankar 

(Chairman) 

00044713 Director  Non-Executive Non-Independent 

2. Mr. Sanjay 

Joglekar 

00209394 Director Non-Executive Non-Independent 

3. Mr. Vinay 

Deshpande 

01904423 Director  Non-Executive Non-Independent 

4. Mr. Rajeshwar 

Tripathi 

06734734 Director Non-Executive Non-Independent 

5. Mr. Rahul 

Asthana 

00234247 Director  Non-Executive Independent 

6. Ms. Neera Saggi 00501029 Director Non-Executive Independent 

(Women) 

7.  Mr. Nikhil 

Madgavkar* 

05163088 Managing Director Executive Non-Independent 

*Appointed as Additional Director w.e.f. 1st October, 2021 and consequently appointed as Managing Director and 

KMP of the Company for a term of three years with effect from 1st October, 2021 to 30th September, 2024. 

 

Mr. Sanjay Joglekar (DIN: 00209394) retires by rotation at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting and being 

eligible has offered himself for re-appointment. 

 



 

 

Mr. Rahul Asthana (DIN: 00234247) and Ms. Neera Saggi (DIN: 00501029) were appointed as Additional 

Directors in the capacity of Non-Executive Independent Directors with effect from 28th December, 2020, for a 

consecutive period of 3 years i.e. upto 27th December, 2023 and were regularized at the 10th Annual General 

Meeting held on 26th July, 2021 as Independent Directors of the Company. 

 

Mr. Nikhil Madgavkar (DIN: 05163088) was appointed as Additional Director with effect from 1st October, 2021 

and consequently appointed as Managing Director and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company for a term of 

three years with effect from 1st October, 2021 to 30th September, 2024 (both days inclusive) who holds office up 

to the date of ensuing Annual General Meeting. The Company has received, pursuant to Section 160 of the 

Companies Act, 2013, notice in writing from member proposing candidature of Mr. Nikhil Madgavkar to the 

office of Director of the Company at the ensuing 11th Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) of your Company. A 

resolution seeking approval of the shareholders for his appointment as Director alongwith his detailed profile is 

provided in the Notice for the ensuing Annual General Meeting. 

 

The declaration under Section 149(7) of the Companies Act, 2013 has been received from Mr. Rahul Asthana 

(DIN: 00234247) and Ms. Neera Saggi (DIN: 00501029), Independent Directors, to the effect that they meet the 

criteria of Independence as provided in sub-section (6) of Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules 

made thereunder, and they are independent of the management of the Company. 

 

Mr. Rahul Asthana and Ms. Neera Saggi have also registered themselves with the Databank of Independent 

Directors maintained by the Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs (“IICA”) in compliance with Rule 6(1) (b) of 

the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2019 and both are exempted from appearing 

for Online Proficiency test as per Rule 6(4) of the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 

2014. 

 

In the opinion of the Board, Mr. Rahul Asthana and Ms. Neera Saggi possess the requisite expertise, integrity, 

proficiency and experience to act as Independent Directors of the Company. 

 

The Company has received declarations from all the Directors including the Independent Directors in Form DIR-

8 as prescribed under Section 164 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Rule 14(1) of Companies 

(Appointment and Qualifications of Directors) Rules, 2014 that they are not disqualified from being appointed as 

Directors of the Company pursuant to Section 164 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

 

EVALUATION OF PERFORMANCE OF DIRECTORS 

 

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board carried out an annual evaluation of its own 

performance and that of its Committees as well as performance of the Directors individually. Feedback was sought 

by way of a structured questionnaire covering various aspects of the Board’s functioning and the evaluation was 

carried out based on responses received from Directors. 

 

The performance evaluation of the Non-Independent Directors and the Board as a whole was carried out by the 

Independent Directors. The performance evaluation of the Chairman of the Company was also carried out by the 

Independent Directors, taking into account the views of the Executive and Non-Executive Directors. The period 

of evaluation as carried out/participated by Mr. Nikhil Madgavkar, Managing Director of the Company was from 

1st October, 2021 upto 31st March, 2022, i.e. from effective date of his appointment. 

 

The Directors expressed their satisfaction with the evaluation process. 

 

 

 

 



 

 

CODES OF CONDUCT 

 

The Company has adopted Code of Conduct for Corporate governance of its Directors, Senior Management 

Personnel and Employees enunciating the underlying principles governing the conduct of its business and seeking 

to reiterate the fundamental precept that good governance must be an integral part of its ethos. 

 

Your Company has, for the year under review, received declarations from Directors, Senior Management 

Personnel and Employees, affirming compliance with the respective Code of Conduct. 

 

BOARD MEETINGS AND GENERAL MEETINGS 

 

Your Board of Directors met seven times during the year under review i.e. on 4th May, 2021, 26th July, 2021, 28th 

September, 2021, 2nd November, 2021, 27th January, 2022, 21st February, 2022 and 24th March, 2022.  The 

maximum interval between any two meetings did not exceed 120 days. 

 

During the financial year under review, the attendance of the Directors at the meetings of the Board were as follows: 

 

Sr. No. Name of Director No. of Meeting Attended 

(out of 7 meetings) 

1. Mr. S. Durgashankar 7 

2. Mr. Sanjay Joglekar 7 

3. Mr. Vinay Deshpande 7 

4. Mr. Rajeshwar Tripathi 7 

5. Mr. Rahul Asthana 6 

6. Ms. Neera Saggi 7 

7. Mr. Nikhil Madgavkar* 4 (out of 4 meetings) 

*Appointed as Additional Director w.e.f. 1st October, 2021 and consequently appointed as Managing Director and 

KMP of the Company for a term of three years with effect from 1st October, 2021 to 30th September, 2024. 

 

The 10th Annual General Meeting of the Company was held on 26th July, 2021. One Extra-ordinary General 

meeting of the Company was held on 2nd November, 2021. 

 

DIRECTOR’S RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT: 

 

Pursuant to section 134(3)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013, your Directors based on the representations received 

from the Operating Management, and after due enquiry, confirm that: 

 

(a)  in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been followed; 

(b) Accounting policies have been selected in consultation with the Statutory Auditors and these have been applied 

consistently and reasonable and prudent judgments and estimates have been made so as to give a true and fair 

view of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 2022 and of the Profit of the Company for the year 

ended on that date; 



 

 

(c) Proper and sufficient care have been taken for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance 

with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing 

and detecting fraud and other irregularities; 

(d) the annual accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis; and 

(e) Proper systems have been devised to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and that such 

systems were adequate and operating effectively. 

 

APPOINTMENTS OF/ CHANGES IN KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL, IF ANY 

 

The provisions of sections 2(51) and 203 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Appointment 

and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 are not applicable to your Company.  

 

However, considering the size, complexity of operations and as a good governance practice, the Board at its 

volition appointed Mr. Richard de Souza as the Chief Executive officer and Key Managerial Personnel of the 

Company and Mr. Riten Chakrabarty as Chief Financial Officer and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company, 

effective from 6th May, 2019 as per the provisions of Section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013 despite the non-

requirement of the said provisions.   

 

During the year under review, Mr. Richard de Souza tendered his resignation as Chief Executive Officer of the 

Company w.e.f. 30th September, 2021 pursuant to his retirement. The Board placed on record its sincere 

appreciation of the valuable contribution made by Mr. Richard de Souza during his association with the Company. 

 

Pursuant to retirement/resignation of Mr. Richard de Souza as Chief Executive Officer and Key Managerial 

Personnel (“KMP”) of the Company effective 30th September, 2021, Mr. Nikhil Madgavkar was appointed as an 

Additional Director and consequently appointed/designated as Managing Director and KMP of the Company as 

per the provisions of Sections 196,  2(51) and  203 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and the Rules framed 

thereunder for a period of 3 years with effect from 1st October, 2021 to 30th  September, 2024 (both days inclusive), 

liable to retire by rotation.  

 

The Shareholders of the Company at the Extra-ordinary General Meeting held on 2nd November, 2021, approved 

the appointment of Mr. Nikhil Madgavkar as Managing Director and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company 

including approval of his remuneration and terms and conditions of his appointment as per Sections 196, 197, 198 

and 203 of the Act read with Schedule V. Further, a resolution seeking approval of the shareholders for 

regularizing him as Director alongwith his detailed profile is provided in the Notice for the ensuing Annual 

General Meeting. 

 

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD 

 

AUDIT COMMITTEE 

 

The Audit Committee comprises of the following three directors with Independent Directors forming a majority: 

 

Mr. S Durgashankar – Chairman of the Committee/Non-executive Director 

Mr. Rahul Asthana – Independent Director 

Ms. Neera Saggi – Independent Director 

 

The Audit Committee met six times during the year under review viz. on 4th May, 2021, 26th July, 2021, 2nd 

November, 2021, 27th January, 2022, 21st February, 2022 and 24th March, 2022.  

 

During the year under review, the attendance at the meetings of the Audit Committee were as follows:  



 

 

 

Name of Director  Designation No. of meetings attended 

(out of 6 meetings) 

Mr. S Durgashankar Chairman 6 

Mr. Rahul Asthana Member 5 

Ms. Neera Saggi Member 6 

 

All the recommendations of the Audit Committee were accepted by the Board. 

 

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE 

 

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee currently comprises of the following three directors: 

 

Mr. Rahul Asthana – Chairman of the Committee/Independent Director 

Mr. S Durgashankar – Non-executive Director 

Ms. Neera Saggi – Independent Director 

 

All the members of the Committee are Non-Executive Directors out of which not less than one half of the members 

are Independent Directors. 

  

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee met five times during the year under review viz. on 4th May, 2021, 

26th July, 2021, 28th September, 2021, 2nd November, 2021 and 21st February, 2022.  

 

During the year under review, the attendance at the meetings of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee 

were as follows:  

 

Name of Director  Designation No. of meetings attended 

(out of 5 meetings) 

Mr. Rahul Asthana Chairman 5 

Mr. S Durgashankar Member 5 

Ms. Neera Saggi Member 5 

 

MEETING OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS 

 

During the year under review, the Independent Directors of the Company met once on 27th April, 2021 without 

the presence of Non-Independent Directors or Chief Executive Officer or Chief Financial Officer or any other 

Management Personnel.  

 

The Meeting was conducted in an informal and flexible manner to enable the Independent Directors to discuss 

matters pertaining to, inter alia, review of performance of Non-Independent Directors and the Board as a whole, 

assess the quality, quantity and timeliness flow of information between the Company Management and the Board 

that is necessary for the Board to effectively and reasonably perform their duties.  

 

 

 

 



 

 

VIGIL MECHANISM 

 

The provisions relating to Vigil Mechanism enumerated under Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not 

applicable to your Company. 

 

STATUTORY AUDITORS & AUDIT REPORT 

 

Messrs B. K. Khare & Co., Chartered Accountants, (ICAI Registration Number 105102W) have been appointed 

as the Statutory Auditor of the Company at the 8th Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) held on 24th July, 2019 for 

a period of 5 years from the conclusion of the 8th AGM till the conclusion of the 13th AGM of the Company to be 

held in the year 2024. 

 

As required under the provisions of Section 139(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has received 

certificate to the effect that they continue to satisfy the criteria provided in Section 141 of the Companies Act, 

2013 in accordance with the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Rules framed thereunder. 

   

The Auditors’ Report for the year under review does not contain any qualification, reservation or adverse remark 

or disclaimer. 

 

SECRETARIAL AUDITOR AND THEIR REPORT 

 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 9 of the Companies 

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Company appointed M/s. Siroya and 

BA Associates, a firm of Company Secretaries in Whole-time Practice, (vide Partnership no. P2019MH074300) 

to undertake the Secretarial Audit of the Company for the financial year 2021-22. 

 

In terms of the provisions of Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has annexed with this 

Directors’ Report as Annexure I, the Secretarial Audit Report for the financial year under review in the prescribed 

Form MR – 3. 

 

The Secretarial Audit Report does not contain any qualification, reservation or adverse remark or disclaimer. 

 

INTERNAL AUDITOR 

 

For the financial year ended 31st March, 2022, as per the provisions of Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013 

read with the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, the requirements of having Internal Auditor was not applicable 

to your Company basis the audited financials as on 31st March, 2021. 

 

However, from a good governance perspective and considering the nature, size and operations of the Company, 

the Company considered it appropriate to engage Internal Audit and hence, the Board at its volition appointed Mr. 

K N Vaidyanathan as Internal Auditor of the Company for the financial year 2021-2022.  

 

The Internal Audit Report does not contain any qualification, reservation or adverse remark which is affecting the 

financials. 

 

MAINTENANCE OF COST RECORDS & COST AUDITOR 

 

The Company is not required to maintain cost accounts and records as required under Section 148(1) of the 

Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder and hence appointment of Cost Auditor is also not applicable to 

your Company. 

 



 

 

REPORTING OF FRAUDS BY AUDITORS 

 

During the year under review, the Statutory Auditors have not reported any instances of frauds committed in the 

Company by its officers or employees to the Board/ Audit Committee pursuant to Section 143(12) of the 

Companies Act 2013. 

 

POLICY ON CRITERIA FOR APPOINTMENT OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT 

PERSONNEL AND REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS, KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL AND 

OTHER EMPLOYEES 

 

In line with the principles of transparency and consistency and upon recommendation of the Nomination and 

Remuneration Committee and approved by the Board at its meeting held on 21st January, 2021, your Company 

has adopted the following Policies as required under Section 178(3) of the Companies Act, 2013: 

 

• Policy on the appointment of Directors & Senior Management and Succession Planning for Orderly 

Succession to the Board & the Senior Management; and 

• Policy for remuneration of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other employees 

 

The aforesaid policies are provided as Annexure IIA and Annexure IIB, respectively to this report and is also 

available on our website at - https://www.mibs.in/policies.  

 

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY 

 

Your Company has developed Risk Management Policy which inter-alia includes therein identification of 

elements of risk which in the opinion of Board may threaten the existence of the Company.  

 

The risk management policy sets out the objectives and includes identification of key risks and their mitigation 

plans. The Board reviews the Risk Management framework including significant risks, if any, and steps taken to 

mitigate the same, on quarterly basis. There are no risks that may threaten the existence of the Company. 

 

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) 

 

The provisions relating to Corporate Social Responsibility enumerated under section 135 of the Companies Act, 

2013 are not applicable to your Company. 

 

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL SYSTEM AND THEIR ADEQUACY 

 

Your Company has in place adequate internal financial controls with reference to the Financial Statements 

commensurate with the size, scale and complexity of its operations. Your Company conducts reviews, at regular 

intervals, to assess the adequacy of financial and operating controls for the business of the Company. Statutory 

Auditors have audited the Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting of the Company as of 31st March, 

2022.  

 

Significant issues, if any, are brought to the attention of the Audit Committee. Statutory Auditors and Internal 

auditors are invited to attend Audit Committee meetings. Corrective actions, if required, are being taken up 

immediately to ensure that the internal financial control system remains robust and as an effective tool. 

 

PEOPLE 

 

Your Company has over 4,893 people on its payroll as at 31st March, 2022. Your Company acknowledges its 

commitment to their regional development and improving their standard of living. 

https://www.mibs.in/policies


 

 

 

SAFETY, HEALTH AND ENVIRONMENTAL PERFORMANCE 

 

Your Company maintains a good health and safety record in line with the Health and Wellness Policy of the 

Mahindra Group. 

 

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE 

EARNINGS AND OUTGO 

 

The particulars relating to the energy conservation, technology absorption and foreign exchange earnings and 

outgo, as required under section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 8(3) of the Companies 

(Account) Rules, 2014, is furnished as Annexure III to this Report. 

 

DISCLOSURE OF PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES AS REQUIRED UNDER RULE 5 (2) OF THE 

COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) RULES, 

2014 

 

Being an unlisted company, provisions of Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of 

Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 are not applicable to your Company. 

 

PUBLIC DEPOSITS 

 

Your Company had not accepted any deposits from the public, or its employees, within the meaning of Section 

73 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 during the year under 

review and there is no amount which qualifies as deposit outstanding as on the date of balance sheet and not in 

compliance with the requirement of chapter V of the Companies Act, 2013. 

 

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 186 OF THE 

COMPANIES ACT, 2013 

 

Your Company has neither given any loan, guarantee or provided any security in connection with a loan nor made 

any investment pursuant to Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 during the year under review. 

 

Particulars of Investments including such investments made pursuant to Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 as 

on 31st March, 2022 is provided under Note 9 & 11 of the financial statements. 

 

Your Company has not made or taken any loans/advances which are required to be disclosed in the annual accounts 

of the Company pursuant to Regulations 34(3) and 53(f) read with Schedule V of Securities and Exchange Board of 

India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 applicable to the ultimate Holding 

Company, Mahindra & Mahindra Limited. 

 

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES 

 

All the Related Party Transactions entered, during the year, referred to in sub section (1) of section 188 of the 

Companies Act, 2013, and rules made thereunder, were in ordinary course of business and at arm’s length basis.  

 

Particulars of material contracts or arrangements or transactions with related parties, required to be furnished in terms 

of Section 134 of Companies Act, 2013 are furnished in form AOC – 2 as Annexure IV to this Report. 

 

 

 



 

 

ANNUAL RETURN 

 

As per the provisions of section 92(3) and 134(3)(a) read with Rule 11 of the Companies (Management and 

Administration) Rules, 2014 as amended on 5th March 2021, every company shall place a copy of the annual 

return on the website of the company, if any, and the web-link of such annual return shall be disclosed in the 

Board's report. Hence, it is no longer required to attach the extract of the Annual Return i.e. Form MGT-9 in the 

Board’s report. 

 

A copy of the Annual Return of the Company for the year ended 31st March, 2022 has been placed on the website 

of the Company and can be accessed at the Web-link: - https://www.mibs.in/audited-report.  

 

THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND 

REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013 

 

The Company is in compliance with the provisions of constitution of the Internal Complaints Committee as 

required under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. 

 

During the year under review, no complaints were received as per The Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace 

(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 and rules framed thereunder. 

 

GENERAL  

 

Your Directors state that no disclosure or reporting is required in respect of the following items as there were no 

transactions/ events on these items during the year under review: 

 

1. Issue of equity shares with differential rights as to dividend, voting or otherwise. 

2. Issue of Shares (Including Sweat Equity Shares and Employees Stock Option Scheme) to employees of 

the Company under any Scheme. 

3. Significant or material orders passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals which impact the going 

concern status and the Company’s operations in future. 

4. Voting rights which are not exercised by the employees in respect of shares for the subscription/purchase 

of which loan was given by the Company as there is no scheme pursuant to which such persons can 

beneficially hold shares as envisaged under section 67(3) (c) of the Companies Act, 2013. 

5. There has been no change in the nature of business of the Company; 

6. The Company has not made any applications and there are no proceedings pending under the Insolvency 

and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (31 of 2016); 

7. The Company has no borrowings, and hence the requirement of providing details of difference between 

amount of the valuation done at the time of one time settlement and the valuation done while taking loan 

from the Banks or Financial Institutions along with the reasons thereof is not applicable. 

  

COMPLIANCE WITH THE PROVISIONS OF SECRETARIAL STANDARD 1 AND SECRETARIAL 

STANDARD 2 

 

The applicable Secretarial Standards, i.e. SS-1 and SS-2, relating to ‘Meetings of the Board of Directors’ and 

‘General Meetings’, respectively, have been duly complied by the Company.  

 

 

 

 

 

https://www.mibs.in/audited-report


 

 

SUSTAINABILITY 

 

Your Company continues with its journey on sustainable development with conscious efforts to minimize the 

environmental impact caused by its operations and simultaneously taking responsibility to enable communities to 

Rise without losing focus on economic performance. 

 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS 

 

Your Directors are pleased to take this opportunity to thank the bankers, customers, vendors and all the other 

stakeholders for their co-operation to the Company during the year under review. 

 

 

For and on behalf of the Board 

 

 

 

                              S. Durgashankar  

                                Chairman  

Chennai, 28th April, 2022











 

 

ANNEXURE II TO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT 

 

ANNEXURE IIA 

 

POLICY ON APPOINTMENT OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT AND SUCCESSION 

PLANNING FOR ORDERLY SUCCESSION TO THE BOARD AND THE SENIOR MANAGEMENT 

 

DEFINITIONS 

 

The definitions of some of the key terms used in this Policy are given below. 

 

“Board” means Board of Directors of the Company. 

 

“Company” means Mahindra Integrated Business Solutions Private Limited. 

 

“Committee(s)” means Committees of the Board for the time being in force. 

 

“Employee” means employee of the Company whether employed in India or outside India including employees 

in the Senior Management Team of the Company. 

 

“HR” means the Human Resource department of the Company. 

 

“Key Managerial Personnel” (KMP) refers to key managerial personnel as defined under the Companies Act, 

2013 and as amended from time to time. 

 

“Nomination and Remuneration Committee” (NRC) means Nomination and Remuneration Committee of 

Board of Directors of the Company for the time being in force. 

 

“Senior Management” means personnel of the Company who are members of its Core Management Team 

excluding Board of Directors comprising of all members of management one level below the executive Directors 

including the functional heads. 

 

I. APPOINTMENT OF DIRECTORS 

 

•  The NRC reviews and assesses Board composition and recommends the appointment of new Directors. In 

evaluating the suitability of individual Board member, the NRC shall take into account the following criteria 

regarding qualifications, positive attributes and independence of Director. 

 

1. All Board appointments will be based on merit, in the context of the skills, experience, independence and 

knowledge, for the Board as a whole to be effective. 

 

2. Ability of the candidates to devote sufficient time and attention to his professional obligations as Independent 

Director for informed and balanced decision making. 

3. Adherence to the Code of Conduct and highest level of Corporate Governance in letter and in sprit by the 

Independent Directors. 

 

•    Based on recommendation of the NRC, the Board will evaluate the candidate(s) and decide on the selection of the 

appropriate member. The Board through the Chairman or the Managing Director or any other Director will interact 

with the new member to obtain his/her consent for joining the Board. Upon receipt of the consent, the new Director 

will be co-opted by the Board in accordance with the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules 

made thereunder. 



 

 

 

REMOVAL OF DIRECTORS 

 

If a Director is attracted with any disqualification as mentioned in any of the applicable Act, rules and regulations 

thereunder or due to non - adherence to the applicable policies of the Company, the NRC may recommend to the 

Board with reasons recorded in writing, removal of a Director subject to the compliance of the applicable statutory 

provisions. 

 

SENIOR MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL 

 

The NRC shall identify persons who are qualified to become Directors and who may be appointed in senior 

management team in accordance with the criteria as enumerated above.  

 

Senior Management personnel are appointed or promoted and removed/relieved with the authority of Chairman 

or Managing Director based on the business need and the suitability of the candidate. 

 

II. SUCCESSION PLANNING:  

 

Purpose 

 

The Talent Management Policy sets out the approach to the development and management of talent in the 

Mahindra Group to ensure the implementation of the strategic business plans of the Group and the Group 

Aspiration of being among the Top 50 globally most-admired brands by 2021. 

 

Board 

 

The successors for the Independent Directors shall be identified by the NRC atleast one quarter before expiry of 

the scheduled term. In case of separation of Independent Directors due to resignation or otherwise, successor will 

be appointed at the earliest but not later than the immediate next Board meeting or three months from the date of 

such vacancy, whichever is later. 

 

The successors for the Executive Director(s) shall be identified by the NRC from among the Senior Management 

or through external source as the Board may deem fit. 

 

The NRC will accord due consideration for the expertise and other criteria required for the successor. 

 

The Board may also decide not to fill the vacancy caused at its discretion. 

 

Senior Management Personnel: 

 

A good succession-planning program aims to identify high growth individuals, train them and feed the pipelines 

with new talent. It will ensure replacements for key job incumbents in KMPs and senior management positions in 

the organization. 

 

Significantly, we have a process of identifying Hi-pots and critical positions. Successors are mapped for these 

positions at the following levels: 

1. Emergency successor 

2. Ready now 

3. Ready in 1 to 2 years 

4. Ready in 2 to 5 years 



 

 

5. Ready in more than 5 years 

in order to ensure talent readiness as per a laddered approach. 

 

Policy Statement 

 

The Talent Management framework of the Mahindra Group has been created to address three basic issues: 

 

1) Given the strategic business plans, do we have the skills and competencies required to implement them? If 

not, how do we create them – by developing them internally or through lateral induction from outside? 

 

2) For critical positions, what is the succession pipeline? 

 

3) What are the individual development plans for individuals both in the succession pipeline as well as others? 

 

 

The framework lays down an architecture and processes to address these questions using the 3E approach: 

 

 

a) Experience i.e. both long and short-term assignments. This has 70% weightage 

 

b) Exposure i.e. coaching and mentoring – 20% weightage 

 

c) Education i.e. learning and development initiatives – 10% weightage 

 

 

The Talent Management process is applicable to all employees. Over the years, the Talent Management 

framework has become a well-structured and process-oriented system which is driven by an interactive and 

collaborative network of Talent Councils at the Group and Sector Levels. These Talent Councils, which consist 

mainly of senior business leaders supported by HR, are a mix of Sector (Business) and Functional Councils 

coordinated by an Apex Talent Council, headed by the Group Chairman. The Apex Council reviews the work 

done by the Talent Councils and facilitates movement of talent across Sectors. The Sector / Functional Councils 

meet regularly throughout the year and the Apex Council interacts with each one of them separately once a year, 

and in addition conducts an integrated meeting where the Chairpersons of all the Councils are present. 

 

 

  



 

 

The Talent Management process can be represented pictorially as under: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The talent pipeline is maintained and developed so as to ensure that there is a seamless flow of talent. An important 

part of this exercise is drawing up and implementing IDAPs (Individual Development Action Plans) for every 

Executive concerned using the 3E approach mentioned above. 

 

For and on behalf of the Board 

 

 

 

                              S. Durgashankar  

                                Chairman  

Chennai, 28th April, 2022 
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ANNEXURE IIB 

 

POLICY FOR REMUNERATION OF THE DIRECTORS, KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL AND 

OTHER EMPLOYEES 

 

Purpose 

 

This Policy sets out the approach to Compensation of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other employees 

in Mahindra Integrated Business Solutions Private Limited. 

 

Policy Statement 

 

We have a well-defined Compensation policy for Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and all other employees. 

The overall compensation philosophy which guides us is that in order to achieve global leadership and dominance 

in domestic markets, we need to attract and retain high performers by compensating them at levels that are broadly 

comparable with the median of the comparator basket while differentiating people on the basis of performance, 

potential and criticality for achieving competitive advantage in the business. 

 

In order to effectively implement this, we have built our Compensation structure by a regular benchmarking over 

the years with relevant players across the industry we operate in. 

 

Non-Executive Including Independent Directors 

 

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) shall decide the basis for determining the compensation, 

both fixed and variable, to the Non-Executive Directors, including Independent Directors, whether as commission 

or otherwise. The NRC shall take into consideration various factors such as Director’s participation in Board and 

Committee meetings during the year, other responsibilities undertaken, such as membership or Chairmanship of 

committees, time spent in carrying out their duties, role and functions as envisaged in Schedule IV of the 

Companies Act 2013 and such other factors as the NRC may consider deem fit for determining the compensation. 

The Board shall determine the compensation to Non-Executive Directors within the overall limits specified in the 

Shareholders resolution. 

 

Executive Directors 

 

The remuneration to Managing Director and Executive Director(s) shall be recommended by NRC to the Board. 

The remuneration consists of both fixed compensation and variable compensation and shall be paid as salary, 

commission, performance bonus, stock options (where applicable), perquisites and fringe benefits as approved by 

the Board and within the overall limits specified in the Shareholders resolution. While the fixed compensation is 

determined at the time of their appointment, the variable compensation will be determined annually by the NRC 

based on their performance. 

 

Key Managerial Personnel (KMPs) 

 

The terms of remuneration of KMPs shall be determined by the Board and revised either by any Director or such 

other person as may be authorized by the Board from time to time. The remuneration shall be consistent with the 

competitive position of the salary for similar positions in the industry and their Qualifications, Experience, Roles 

and Responsibilities. Pursuant to the provisions of section 203 of the Companies Act 2013 the Board shall approve 

the remuneration at the time of their appointment. 

 



 

 

The remuneration to Directors, KMPs and senior management involves a balance between fixed and incentive 

pay reflecting short and long-term performance objectives appropriate to the working of the Company and its 

goals. 

 

Employees 

 

We follow a differential approach in choosing the comparator basket for benchmarking, depending upon the level 

in the organization: 

 

a. For Leadership Team, we have a position-based approach and the comparator basket includes benchmarks 

from across relevant industries. 

b. For all other employees, we benchmark with a set of comparators from the same industry. 

 

We have a CTC (Cost to Company) concept which includes a fixed component (Guaranteed Pay) and a variable 

component (Performance pay). The percentage of the variable component increases with increasing hierarchy 

levels, as we believe employees at higher positions have a far greater impact and influence on the overall business 

result. The CTC is reviewed once every year and the compensation strategy for positioning of individuals takes 

into consideration the following elements: 

• Performance 

• Potential 

• Criticality 

Remuneration for the new employees other than KMPs and Senior Management Personnel will be decided by the 

HR, in consultation with the concerned business unit head at the time of hiring, depending upon the relevant job 

experience, last compensation and the skill-set of the selected candidate. 

 

The Company may also grant Stock Options to the Employees and Directors (other than Independent Directors & 

Promoters) in accordance with the ESOP Scheme of the Company and subject to the compliance of the applicable 

statutes and regulations. 

 

For and on behalf of the Board 

 

 

                              S. Durgashankar  

                                Chairman  

Chennai, 28th April, 2022 

 

  



 

 

ANNEXURE III TO THE BOARD’S REPORT 

 

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE 

EARNINGS AND OUTGO: 

 

PARTICULARS AS PER SECTION 134(3)(m) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 READ WITH RULE 

8(3) OF THE COMPANIES (ACCOUNTS) RULES, 2014 AND FORMING PART OF THE DIRECTORS’ 

REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2022 

 

(A) Conservation of energy 

 

(i) the steps taken or impact on conservation of energy– Necessary measures are taken to contain and 

bring about saving in power consumption, wherever practicable for India branch only 

(ii) the steps taken by the company for utilizing alternate sources of energy– Not applicable in view 

of the nature of activities carried on by the Company for all the branches 

(iii) the capital investment on energy conservation equipment– Not applicable in view of the nature 

of activities carried on by the Company for all the branches 

 

(B) Technology absorption 

 

(i) the efforts made towards technology absorption– Not applicable in view of the nature of activities 

carried on by the Company for all the branches 

(ii) the benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction, product development or import 

substitution– Not applicable in view of the nature of activities carried on by the Company for all 

the branches 

(iii) in case of imported technology (imported during the last three years reckoned from the beginning 

of the financial year) – Not applicable in view of the nature of activities carried on by the 

Company for all the branches 

  (a) the details of technology imported - Nil 

  (b) the year of import - Nil 

  (c) whether the technology been fully absorbed - Nil 

(d) if not fully absorbed, areas where absorption has not taken place, and the reasons thereof 

- Nil. 

 (iv) the expenditure incurred on Research and Development– Not applicable in view of the nature of 

activities carried on by the Company for all the branches



 

 

(C) Foreign exchange earnings and Outgo 

 

The Foreign Exchange earned in terms of actual inflows during the year: Rs.1,22,47,803/- 

The Foreign Exchange outgo during the year in terms of actual outflows: NIL 

 

For and on behalf of the Board 

 

 

 

                              S. Durgashankar  

                                Chairman  

Chennai, 28th April, 2022



 

 

ANNEXURE IV TO THE BOARD’S REPORT 

FORM NO. AOC – 2 

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014) 

 

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the Company with related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 

of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s length transactions under third proviso thereto 

 

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis — 

 

There were no contracts or arrangements or transactions entered into during the year ended March 31, 2022, which were not at arm’s length basis. 

 

2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis — 

 

The details of material contracts or arrangements or transactions at arm’s length basis for the year ended March 31, 2022 are as follows:  

      

Sr. 

No. 

Name(s) of the Related 

Party & nature of 

relationship 

 

Nature of 

contracts/ 

arrangements/ 

transactions 

 

Transaction 

Value  

(in Rs.) 

Duration of 

contracts/ 

arrangements/ 

transactions 

Salient terms 

of contracts or 

arrangements  

Date of 

approval 

by the Board, if 

any 

 

Amount paid 

as 

advances, if 

any  

1. Mahindra & Mahindra 

Limited (Ultimate 

Holding Company) 

Rendering of 

services - Shared 

Services 

Agreements 

        

3,583,556,689/-   

1st April, 2021 to 

31st March, 2022 

The related party 

transactions 

(RPTs) entered 

during the year 

were in ordinary 

course of business 

and on arm’s 

length basis 

Refer Note 

below 

No  

2. Mahindra & Mahindra 

Limited (Ultimate 

Holding Company) 

Receiving of 

Services  

6,88,32,833/- 1st April, 2021 to 

31st March, 2022 

Refer Note 

below 

No  

3. Mahindra & Mahindra 

Financial Services Ltd 

Rendering of 

services - Shared 

Services 

Agreements 

20,73,51,643/- 1st April, 2021 to 

31st March, 2022 

Refer Note 

below 

No 

 

 

4. Mahindra Automotive 

North America Inc. 

Receiving of 

services 

34,72,69,538/- 1st April, 2021 to 

31st March, 2022 

 

Refer Note 

below 

No 



 

 

5. Mahindra & Mahindra 

Limited (Ultimate 

Holding Company) 

Dividend Paid 42,30,830/- Dividend for 

financial year 2020-

21 was paid in 

Financial year 

2021-22 

Refer Note 

below 

No  

6. Mahindra Holdings 

Limited (Holding 

Company) 

Dividend Paid 7,66,500/- Dividend for 

financial year 2020-

21 was paid in 

Financial year 

2021-22 

Refer Note 

below 

No 

 

Note: Since the above referred transaction is at arm’s length and in the ordinary course of business, approval of the Board is not required as per proviso to sub-section 

(1) of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013. However, necessary approvals and noting has been made by the Audit Committee and by the Board from time to time, 

as and when required. 

 

For and on behalf of the Board 

 

 

 

                              S. Durgashankar  

                                Chairman  

Chennai, 28th April, 2022 



INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the members of Mahindra lntegrated Business Solutions Private Limited

Report on the audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Financial Statements of Mahindra lntegrated Business Solutions
Private Limited ("the Company"), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31,2022 , the
Statement of Profit and Loss including Othor Comprehensive lncome, the Statement of Cash Flows and
the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information in which are incorporated th€ returns for the year ended on
that date audited by the branch auditors of the Company's branches located at lyichigan, USA and
tla n bury, U l(,

ln our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, and
based on the consideration of reports of the branch auditors on separate financial statements of tho
branches referred to in the Other Matters section below, the aforesaid Financial Statements give the
information required by the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") in the manner so required and give a true
and fair view in conformity with the lndian Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the
Act read with the Companies (lndian Accounting Standards) Rules,2015 as amended ("lnd AS") and
other accountinB principles generally accepted in lndia, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
March 31, 2022, its profit and total comprehensive income, its changes in equity and its cash flows for
the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Financial Statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
spccified under Section 1.43(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those Standards arc further
described in the 'Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements' section of our
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by tho
lnstitute of Chartered Accountants of lndia ("the lCAl") together with the ethical requiremenls that are
relevant to our audit of the Financial Statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
rcquirements and the lcAl's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us and the
audit evidence obtained by the branch auditors in terms of their reports referred to in the Other
Matters section below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the
linancial State m e nts.
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lnformation Other than the Financial Statements and Auditors' Report thereon

The Company's Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the Directors Report and the related annexures, but does not include the Financial
Statements and our Audltors' Report thereon.

Our opinion on the Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

ln connection with our audit of the Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the othe r information is materially inconsistent with the
Financial Statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears
to be mate ria lly misstated.

lf, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Res ponslbilities of management for the Financial Statements

'The company's lloard of Diroctors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the n ct with
respect to the preparation of these Financial Statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash
flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India.

1'his responsibility also includes maintenance of adoquate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
.iudgrnents and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of
thc Financial Statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misslatement,
whethcr due to fraud or error.

ln preparing the Financial Statements, management is rcsponsible for assessing the Company's ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
Soing concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to
cease operations, or has no reallstic alternative but to do so.

l-hose lloard of Directors are also responsible for overseeinB the Company's financial reporting process,

Auditors' Responsib ilities for the audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Financialstatements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors' report
that includes our opinion. Ileasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a materlal misstatement when it exists,
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material il individually or in the
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aSSregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these Financial Statements.

As part of an audlt in accordance with SAs, we exercise professio naljudgment and mainta in professional
sccp ticism throughout the a ud it.

We also:

. ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Financial Statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evldence that ls sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. lhe risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resultinB from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internalfinancial control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
prucedures that are approprlate In the clrcumstances. Under Section 143(3)(l) of the Act, we are
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal
financlal controls system in place and the operating eFfectiveness of such controls.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

r Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting
a nd, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a rnaterial uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's abilily to continue as a going
concern. lf we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditors' report to the related disclosures in the Financial Statements or, if such dlsclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditors' report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

I Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content ofthe Financialstatements, including the
disclosures, and whether the Financial Statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a ma n ner that achieves fair presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence rogarding the financial information of the Conrpany
and its branches to express an opinion on the Financial Statements. We are responsible for thc
direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the Financial Statements of such entities or
business activities included in the financial Statements of which we are the independent auditors.
For the other entities or business activities included in the Flnancial Statements, which have been
audited by the branch auditors, such branch auditors remain responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the audits carried out by them. We remain solely responsible for
our a udlt opinion.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Financial Statements that, individually or in
aggregate/ makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the
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Financial Statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative faclors in
(i) planning the scope of our audit worl< and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluatc
thc effect of any identified misstatements in the Financial Statements.

We communicate with those charged wlth governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
lnternal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
othical requirements reBarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

Other Matters

Wc did not audit thc financial statements of two branches included in the Financial Statements of the
Company whose financial statements reflect total assets of Rs. 18,636.07 Lakhs as al. Marc\ 3'1, 202.2

and total revenue of Rs.24.729.76 Lakhs for the year ended on that date, as considered in the F ina ncia I

Statcments. The financialstatements of these branches have been a udited by the bra nch a ud ito rs and
olhcr auditors whosc reports have been furnished to us, and our opinion in so far as it relates to the
aTnounts and disclosures included in respect of these branches and our report in terms of sub-section
(3 ) of sectio n 1.43 of the Act, in so fa r as it re lates to the aforesaid bra nches, is based sole ly on th e re port
of such b ra nch a uditors.

Our opinion on the Financial Statements and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
be ow is not modified in respect of these matters.

Report on other Legal and Regulatory requirements

1., As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order"), issued by the Central
Government of lndia in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Act and on the basis of such
checks of the books and records of the Company as we considered appropriate and according to
the information and explanations given to us, we give in Annexure B, a statement on the matters
specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have soutjht and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the pLlrposes of our a ud it.

(b) ln our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
and its branches so far as it appears from our examination of those books and the reports of
the branch auditors and proper returns adequate for the purposes of our audit have been
received from the bra nches not visited by us.
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The reports on the accounts of the branch offices of the Company audited under Section
143(8) of the Act by branch auditors have been sent to us and have been properly dealt with
by us in preparing this report.

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Olher Comprehensive lncome,
the Statement of Changes ln Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by th is report
are in agreement with the relevant books of account.

ln our opinion, the aforesaid Financial Statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Sectlon 133 of the Act.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2022
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on lvlarch
31,2022 trom being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

Wlth respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to Financial
Statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate report in Annexure A. Our report exprosses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy
and operating effectiveness of the Company's internal financial controls with reference to
IinancialStatements.

ln our opin ion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the remuneration paid by the company to its directors during the year is in accordance

with the provision of section L97 of the Act.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors' Report in accordance with
the requirements of liule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended,
in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
US:

{i) The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial
pos it io n;

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses;

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the lnvestor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

(a)The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed lunds or
share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any
other person(s) or entity(es), including forelgn entities ("lntermed ia ries"), wiLh tho
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the lntermediary
shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entitics
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company ("Ultimate

(c)

(f)

(d)

(e)

(e)

(h)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv )
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Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries;

The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
fu nds have bee n received by the Com pa ny from a ny person (s) or entity(es), includ ing
foreign entities ("Funding Parties"), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

Based on such audit procedures that we considered reasonable and appropriate in
the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has causcd us to believe that
the representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material misstatemont.

(v) The dividend declared and paid during the year by the Company is in compliance with
Section 1.23 of the Act.

(b)

(c)

tor B. l(, l(hare & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Aniruddha Joshi
Pa rtner
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ANNEXURE ,,A.'TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Report on the lnternal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act")

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Mahindra lntegrated Business
Solut ions l)rivate Limited ("the Company") as of March 3L,2022in conjunction with our audit of the lnd
AS financial statements of the Company lor the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for lnternal Financial Controls

Ihe Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internalfinancial controls
bascd on the internalcontrol over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
thc essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of lnternal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the lnstitute of Chartered Accountants of lndia, These
responsibilitles include the design, implcmcntation and maintcnancc of adcquatc intcrnal financial
controls that were operating efleclively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its busincss,
the safe8Uarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information,
as requircd Llnder the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reportinB based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit
of lnternal Financial Controls Over Financial Reportlng (the "Guidance Note") issued by the lnstitute of
Chartered Accountants of lnd ia and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 1.43(10) of the
Com pa nies Act, 2013, to the exte nt a pplica ble to an a udit of inte rna I fina ncla I co ntrols. Those Sta nda rds
and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
attdil to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internalfinancial controis over fina ncia I

rcporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all rnaterial
re s pects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal
fina ncia I controls over financial reporting, assessing whether the risk of a material wea kness exists, and
testing and evaluating the desi8n and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed
risk. The procedures selected depend on the a ud ito r's judgement, including the assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the lnd AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,

We believe that the audit evidence wc have obtained is sLrfficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of lnternal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of lnd AS
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flnancial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and
procedures that: (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and
fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of lnd AS financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management
and directors of the companyi and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely
detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a

materialeffect on the lnd AS financial statements.

lnherent Limitations of lnternal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected, Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

ln our opinicrn, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial
reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at
March 31, 2022, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essentialcomponents of internalcontrol stated in the G uida nce Note on Aud it
of lnternal Financial Controls Over [:inancial Reportjng issued by the lnstitute of Chartered Accountants
of lnd ia.

tor B.l(. l(hare & Co.
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ANEXURE B TO THE AUDITOR'5 REPORT

Referred to in paragraph 1 under Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements section of our
report of even date on the financial statements for the year ended March 37,2022

(a) (A) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has ma inta ined proper
records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and situation of property, plant
and eq uipment.

(B) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has malntained
proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

(b) The Company has a regular programme for physical verification of its property, plant and
equipment by which the property, plant and equipment are verified by the management
according to a phased programme designed to cover allthe items over a period of 3 years. ln our
opinion, this periodicity of the physical verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the
Company and nature of its property, plant and equipment. ln accordance with the programme,
the Company has physically verified certain property, plant and equiprnent during the year and
no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures
pe rformed by us, the title deeds of im mova ble properties a re held in the na me of the Co m pa ny.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not revalued any 01'

its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use assets) during the year.

(e) llased on the audit procedures performed by us and according to the information, explanations
and representations given to us, no proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the
Company for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibilion) Act, 1988
(45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder.

(a) Company is into service industry and does not hold any inventory, hence, reporling under Clause
3(ii)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not been sanctionecl
working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate, from banks or financial
institutions on the basis of security of current assets at any point of time during the yea r,

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not made investments
in or provided any Suarantee or security or granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans,
secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other partles during
the year. Accordingly, the reporting under Clauses 3(iii)(a ) to 3(iiiXf) of the Order is not applicable to
the Company.
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ln our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
complied with the provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the Act, with respect to loans granted,
guarantees provided and investments made by the Company. The Company has not provided any
security during the year to the parties covered under Sections 185 and 186 of the Act.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted deposits
under the provisions of Sections 73 lo 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Act and the rules
fra med thereunder. Accord ingly, the reporting under Cla use 3 (v) of the Orde r is not a pplica ble to the
Company.

'I'he Central Government has not specified the maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1.) of
Section 148 of the Act for any of the products of the Company. Accordingly, the reporting under
Clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
records of the Company, the amounts deducted / accrued in the books of account in respect of
undisputed statutory dues of lncome-tax have been regularly deposited during the year by thc
Company with the appropriate authorities. According to the information and explanations given to
us and on the basis of our examination of records of the Company, there were no undisputed
statutory dues payable in respect of Sales tax, Service tax, Duty of Customs, Duty of Excise and Va lue
Added l"a x.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
records of the Company, there were no arrears of outstanding statutory dues in respect of Goocls
and Services tax, Provident fund, Employees' State lnsurance, lncome-tax, Sales tax, Service tax, DutV
of Customs, Duty of Excise, Value Added Tax, Cess and other material statutory dues as on the last
day of the financial year for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable,

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
rccords of the Company, there are no statutory dues in respect of Goods and Services Tax, Provident
fund, Employees' State lnsurance, Sales tax, Servlce tax, Duty of Customs, Duty of Excise, Value
Added Tax, Cess and any other material statutory dues as at 31 March 2022, which have not been
deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of any dispute.

According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no transactions not recorded in
the books of account which have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax
assessments under the lncome-tax Act, 1961. Accordingly, the reporting under Clause 3(viii) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit proceclurcs
performed by us, the Company has not availed any loans or other borrowings during the year.
Accordingly, the reporting r.rnder Clause 3(ix)(a) of the Order is not applicablc to the Company,

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not been declared a

wilfuldefaulter by any ba nk or Iinancialinstitution or any other lender till the date ofour auclit report,
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(c) The Company has not raised any term loa ns during the year. Hence, reporting under Clause 3(ix)(c)
of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(d) ln our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not availed any loans or borrowings during the year. Accordingly, the reporting under Clause 3 (ix)(d )

of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company does not have any
su bsid ia ries, associates or.ioint ve ntu res. Acco rd ingly, the re porting under CIa uses 3(ix)(e ) a nd 3(ix)(f)
of the Ordcr is not applicable to the Company.

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not raised any
moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) during the
year. Accordingly, the reporting under Clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not rnade any
preferential allotment or private placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully, partially or
optionally convertible) during the year. Accordingly, the reporting under Clause 3(x)(b) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

(a) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in lndia and according to the information
and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instance of material fraud by the
Company or on the Company noticed or reported during the year, nor have we been informed of any
such case by the management.

(b) 1'here has been no report filed by us under sub-section (L2 ) of Section 143 of the Act in fo rm AD T -

4 as prescribed under Rule L3 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with tho Central
Covernment. Accordingly, the reporting under Clause 3(xi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to tho
Company.

(c) As represented to us by the management, no whistle blower complaints were received by the
Company d u ring the year.

According to the information and explanations glven to us, the Company is not a Nidhicompany and
tho Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it. Accordingly, the reporting under Clause 3(xii) of thc
Order is not applicable to the Company.

ln our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
entered into transactions wlth related parties in compliance with the provisions of Section 188 of the
Act. The details of such related party transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as
required by lndian Accounting Standard (lnd AS) 24, Related Party Disclosures, specified under
Section 133 of the Act.
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xiv. (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination, the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of
its business.

(b) We have considered the lnternal Audit reports of the Company issued till date for the period
u nder audit.

xv. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not entered into any
non-cash transactions with its directors or directors of its holding company or persons connected
with them during the year and hence, the provisions of Section 1.92 of the Act are not applicable to
the Company, AccordinBly, the reportinB under Clause 3(xv) of the Order is not applicablc to the
Company.

xvi, (a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not required to be
registered under Section 45-lA of the Reserve Bank of lndia Act, 1934. Accordingly, the rcporting
under Clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) ln our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not conducted any Non-llanking Financial or Housing Finance activities. Accordingly, the reporting
under Clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

{c) ln our opinion and accordin8 to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not
a Core lnvestment Company (ClC) as def;ned in the regulations made by the Reservo Uank of tndia,
Accordingly, the reporting under Clauses 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company,

(d) I3ased on the information and explanations given to us and the audit procedures performed by
us, we report that the Group has 6 Core lnvestment Companies.

xvli. ln our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
incurred cash losses in the current financial year as well as in the immediately preceding financial
year, Accordingly, the reporting under Clause 3(xvii) of the Ordcr is not applicable to the Company.

xviii. T'here has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, the reporting
under Clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

xix. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios,
ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of fina ncia I llabilitios, othc r
information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the lloard of Directors and
management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions,
nothin{l has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as

on the date of the audit report that the Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at
the date of Ralance Sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the Ualance
Sheet date, We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the company.
We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we
neither Sive any Suarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a periocl of one year
from the Balance Sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.
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xx, Acco rd ing to the info rmation a nd expla natio ns given to us, com pa ny is not lia ble to ad here com p lia ncc
under section 135 of the Companies Act, 20L3. Accordingly, the reporting Clause 3(xx)of the Order is

not applicable to the Company.
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tered Accou nta nts

s llcgistration Number 105102W

l)a rtne r

Membership No.040852
Ul)l N: 22040852A1DFC1.15058

[)laco: Muml]ai
t)ate; April 28,2022

Joshi



Mahindra lntegrrted 0usiness Solutions Private Limited
Balan.e Sheet a5 at 3l March 2022

r ASSars

NON-CUiRENT A5SETS

{a) Properry, Planiand Equlpment
{b) C a p ital wo rk'in- P.osre$
kl hcnsiblesrtl
(d) fina.cialA$ers

Ii) othe. Financral Assets

le) oefered Tax r6set5 (Neo

lfl hcome lar 6rers (ned

[3) othe r N on- curent Assett

SUA.TOTAI

(URN'I{T AsSETS
(a) FinanclalAssels

{l) tnvesrments

liil Trade ne.eivables
{iii) C.sh and crsh Equivalentg
(iv) OtherBankBalences
(v) Other Financial Asset5

(b) Orher Cure.tAssec

TOTAL ASSEIS

ll Equ[lAND uAslLtltcs

I EqUfY
(a) tqlityshareCapital

UABtUllES

2 NON''URqENTLIABILITIES

{.) financialLi.billtres
It) Lea se liabilties

3 CUNRENTIIABII.ITIES

{al FinancialLiabilltles
{l) Trde P.vables

Iolal outstandhgduerol Microand smal{ Enterprises
lora I oul3tandins dues of.redito6 otherthatr Micro and tmalt
Ent€rpdses lrncludins accept.n.er)

liilLea5€ Liabillly
(iii) Orh€r Financlal Liabilities

{c) othercurentLiablli{es

SUB.IOIAL

5

6

10

1l

13

13

2,1s0.34

22,58
60 37

t61.99
3,164.25

6.09

3,132.39

155.93

1,189.25
2.55

!,912,6d
67193

1,055.33

13.93

t1,4r.22

264.12
t.2a

598.02

15,09633
977.99

7515.t

L7 51
2,224.45

4.22
s6.21

2,811.46

13!

590.57

0.22

3,029 81

{vk-
I ^lllir:';:;:;olN No 05163033

Forindon behalloltheBoardoIDne oB

rhe ac.ompanyins notes 1to lSare an nte8raip.n of the Finan.iat Starements

n terms olourrepon attached.

MembeahipNo.0403t2

N

*6T
N

6'

I

*R
umbai l

*&

912411
Typewritten Text
Chennai



Mahindra lnte8rated Business Solutions Private limited
Stateilcnt of Profit and Loss for the Yerr 2021-22

For thc ycar 2020 21

)s
/-!'j

ContinuininB Operations

i :;::i"""'iil*"".-'
lll Totalsevenue (r+II

EXPENSES

/rl Em. oy.e benel t .xpe.se

/.1 ar.pr& it,or rnd anrort !at on erpe..r!

l.rl otre, erpeiree

Profit/(lo$) before esceptioial itcms and tax (l - lV)

shareof prolit/1loss)oljoi.rvcnturesandasso.iates

Profit/{ o$)before tax (Vll VIll)

Profit/(loss)aftdrtrxfromcoitinuinsoperations(lx x)

D rront.!rrl O.. at or!
/, Prol t/( .rs) {r.n, | ,nlnt.lcd op.ratron!

{.21 r'.rrEip.rrscoidC.o.t.!eCoperri.ns
Prorit/(los, aftertax from discont nucd operations (Xlr +xlll)

P/ofit/(los, for the period {xl+ xrV}

vllt

t7
18

19

2A

2t
22

2-l

21

42,719.05

57.32

19,675 8l
\57.97

42,1-76,37 19,833 78

25,579.1,5

54.49

1,081.99

14,327.99

14,738.39

45.04

490.14

4,O44.46

40,941.62 19,318.0?

\784,?S

L,748,75

s06.67

(18.79)

487.88

1,300.87

\3OO.A7

515.75

515.75

178.85

(8.1s)

L70.56

345.09

345.09

Xlll Other comprehensive income

A {i) ltems thatwillnot be rerycled to profitorloss

{a) Remeasurements ofthe defined ben€fit liabilities / (asset)

(ii) 
tncometax retatingtoitems thatwittnot be rectassifiedto profit orloss

t9.94

26.64

(6.70)

10.19

13.77

(2.e8)

xlV Total.omprehensive incomeforthe period (Xll +xlll) 1,120 81 355 28

XV Earnlngs p€r€quity share I

0) Basic

f2J Diluted

24

24

13 51

13.51

9.95

995

The accompanyin8 noies 1to 35 are an intesraipa.t ofthe Fina ncial Statements

ln terms ofour repo( attached. Forand on behalfoftheSorrd oI Dnectors

N
Neera Saggi

DIN No.00501029 DIN No.00234247

r' NikhilMadtavkar
ManaEing Director
DIN No.05163088

Dal€ : 2alo4lZ122

@ata
cFo

Dak2Al04/2022

Membership No.040852

Mumbt

912411
Typewritten Text
  Chennai



Mahindra rniegrated Bu!ines 5olunonr Privare tinired

lgls ,

cleh llows fbm o!.t.tlnr .drrlrl.t

rnve*menritr.om.re.o.nrsed rn prcriro.rG

oepred dron a n d . monkatioh expenses

Op.r.(ir pront b.ro.e srki.! .dplt'l .hanr.i

MoErena in wo'rdtr3 upiLrri
thrca5e)/ocde e h vad€and othsrc.€ !,bres
iD.crcasel/rn{ieBe h thdeand oth..payables

C.rh ..mnEd tum .r.r.rlohr

Ner.ash senei.ted byopendn3adivlies

Csh tl.$ non iiwtrhi rdvitt..

M.runty/llnw$nE.tsl or trred ososftt
P6@eds nom dkpG.r of Mutuat tund invesrm.nts
pro.eeds rio m drrposal of prcp.n , plant & aq u ipm ent
Payment ror..quBnbn of prcpe^n planr & squrpmeitand intaruibre #.8
P.ymnl! for acquierrion ofcwP
riterelt received

Ner c.sh (used iiyleneGred bv i.venine &ttunres

c..h fimi non frn'i.rl! zcrlvltl.i

P.o.*ds from bo(o*ifts
oivrdeids indudiq divid.nd dEr.iburio. hx
Reprymenri of lea3e lrabilrrres lhdudin3 inbred thei@nl
Divldend pard (rnd drvrdenddr*iburion bxtirr p@io6ys )

Ner.rsh used ii fin:n.{n8:diviries

N.r lrcEa. h arl rid ..$ .qulEl.nts

cash iid.ash equivareiratt€be8inninsof th€y.
add acqukrron dar. balin.€

c..h..d6rhaqulv.l..lsatlh..nd of rh.y..r

*- 
1o

Y.

ilumba 
i
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@
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Mahindra lntegrated Business Solutions Private Limited

Sesment r€po.tins for the yea r 2021-22

q
ai )3

le

1 Seg entalRev€nue from operations

United Statesof America
17,985
2L,793

2.941

42 L%

51.09;

6.9%

14,313

5,363 27.3%

Revenue from operations 42,779 1007 19,616 104%

Uirited StalesoiAmerica
622

1,972
213

21.7'X

9 5.1

446
4-47

5A O'%

50.09,"

2,868 893 100,i1

unallocable expenses (ne0'

Depreciation & amortisation expense

57

54
1 082

158

45

\149 516

4 Segment Rev€nue- GeoCraphy-wise

United States of America

Rest ofthe world (RoW)

IA,A47

?7,789

2,941

42.2v,

50.9%

6.9%

14,188

5,446

1?.5%

Revenue f rom operatid.s 42,776 100,0% 19,834 100.02

tomr of.!r repo( ntta.h.d. For ard on behalfoithr Borrd of Directors

/0
t-J ,u

Neera Sassi

DiN No.00501029 OIN No.00234247:mb.-6hip No 0408i2

NikhilMadsavk.r
Managing Director
olN No.05163088

oate : 28/04/2012

R{*t#'
cFo

b 2a104/2a22
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statement Of Chan8es ln Equity fo, the Year lnded 3l Mdrch 2022
Mahlndra lnr4rar€d Businers Solution. Privire Limired

lh roirns of ourr.p!d attached

{9,

For:nd on behallof rho 3oa.d of D radoB

Balan.e ar rhe beginn,rg ofthe.u enr reporti.g Balan.e atthe end ofthecu entreporliIg
Perlod

lrahhdrs Vehicle ManuaactureK Limrled
Mahindra & Mahindra ud

Balance at the beeinningolthe curent reporting pe od

in pqu ty drre.apiGrdurinsrheye.r

in pquityshare.apnal dur hstheyear

in eq!nv share .ap lal dur nr lhe vear

"#llt** F6-4
DIN No.00501029 OIN No.00234247

.t u;q,
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stalement Ofchanges ln other Equity forthe Year Ended 31March 2022
Mahindra lntegrated Business Sol!tions Private Limited

Membership No.040352

aate 28/A4/2A22

F.randonhehrllof theaoJrdDIDired.6

-,4ti
DIN No 00501029

|'tt^f
tr**#

0lN No.05163088

aalc :25/A412072

Ite'nr of other.omprehonsivo rncomp

R€measuremenk of the

delined benetit liabiljties /

Prolit / (Lots)for the pe.iod
other com prchensive lncome / (lo$)
Iotdl Comprehenrive ln.ome lor the V.ar

Dividend paid o. Equity shares
Dividend Distributioo Tax

Proiit / {Los) for the period
0ther comprehensive lncome / {Loss)
tot.l c6npr.hlnslv. heom. lorth. y.!r

Dlvidend paid on EquiiyShare5
Dividend Disnlb!tio. Iar

,r,r.rr.,,
3.04

10.19 t3,542.41
10.19

345.09

122 so)

13,1a7,13

{327.9S1

10.19 13,552,60

1327.951
(22 5o)

1,196,45
1,10043

74.2'

19.94

10.19

241.43

8,544.05
1,300.48

16t 42
1100,43

149.97)

2,447,36 13.17

241,4A

,91_57

1,552.40

149.971

s.0!r5.33

Mumbai

912411
Typewritten Text
Chennai



Mahhdr. lntogratcd 3unn.$ Solullons Privlte tinited

Nor6rorhorinrndaldaten.ntilorth.v. .nd.dM .h3t,2012

M.hindra lnrrirarad B0!rids solurio.! Prrvdd tinn.d E a Prtr.r! t'm
on lSth hnu.,y2olr ind n r rod n. oplrailoh! r.om ln M3y 101r. Th. comp.nyk r.8krercd orrke is.r Mumbri
Mih.rnh,hdh.Trrr.finrn.hl.r.Dh.nt.or..!ohdrorhrnntaloie,lhandrl..hentsolrh?compahy.rh!
co'np qtrrctrdcmrtr.kolltea rlyrlhush.opnv!r.'vr.eprovd.r,trr oidio
e .nd rhe sorvr03ro.orrora!. sadn illarr!.

th! 
'6m!d,!re 

p .nr con!':ny t Marinda Hord,nis t"n(cd..id lhinrr. urre.r compJny ts MJlnn&a & Mrhndh
tim rsd. ' .omnin' in(orooired 

'n 
['dD.

2 I sr.lrmdnrol.ohplhi...n.lh.drrorprcr!rltlo.
., th.s. r'h.ho.liar.mcnc hrv. b..n p..par.d ln,rtord3n.e wlrh rndiatr Artoun!n!5t.id drarp

0idi Acounons sr.nd:,d, Ruler,2o1s 
'meidod 

aid norrli.d uid s€ ohr33ofrhecomDrni!3Ad,r0rrlhc

u. c l'flown emeirro.ep ed 6rnsii^vonLncehdl,.arins.d'vlr'cr c.$flok
(r.pu'redu.i4'ndi,cdm l'odarpnth!..qur.n,.5ul[d7\s7l"c6lllilown.remcnB").whercuyproirrlurhc
v. Edd)unid lorrhc ?Iacdr ol k y d.r.rir!o' a&ru.l!olpanor rurorc orr€r ns

orln.ome orsxpeBsr ro.iir.d w[h i.venin3 or ,lnin.rry .ith rlow

., fun.tion.l rrd pro$ntallon .o,r.nq
lh.so ll.a (il e'icna,. p,oenrcd in r.drao iup.oi llNR'or 'Rup.o.') whkh E ako rh. cod|tnyt aundion.l
.u(en.y. Alran'ounk . rounded.orr ro rh.neai.st raIh., uir.s.rh'(k. ihdr .d.

Ihelinan.irln.lenEnBhavobe.npropa..dotrrh.hlrtoritrl.onbarir.r.eptlor!c.inlinan.hliiit,um.nriwhi.h
re m.arurodrr airr vil!.r.

!, Uiolludi.m.ik.id.nlm.r.t
ro pr6pain3 rl'er. riD..hrn.tm.tr!, m.nrsem.nr hx mads]udr.nrnq.nhr(e.:nd rsu.,prions rrDr arr.d rl[

utrrltrspolti.r tnd rh.,cDo .d JmounB or.*.B,li.6i1 
'cs, 

rrm., drplnes a'd
rho dBdoru,ol ol .onrrruenr r5s.B rnd li.hiririss. Adual ,.,!h! nry dill., ,rom rhB. .rlL r(6 [!rmar.! and
undo,ry'Ba*umprro 3 o,.vowldon..ongoinrbsir.Rev!io.3ro

tdrloqhg . .a!rh 
'nvolvcd 

, h[h.r d4..e or .*'mar! 3ndjuds
a'nounr ol 30mc ii*r rnd l'rbilir'.r.

. ursaullile or prop.ny, pl.d a.dcquiom.nt.id i.taisible.$ets
.nim io.or delrie b.nerir oblr..rion

. rn.o'nehr8 rur.nrandd.hrlJr.r€!
ratrviluo or utrlnred 5..!r[,.r
rnDinmcnr or rade r..eryabl.r

D.tailedinro,m,otrauoltor.horrhe*enhnesa.,!di.mcnBrh.thrvsr4rilkrnrrrko,,erulri.nmardr.l
lYen tr 

'ndud.d 
in r.l.va.r.o1.sl

ir6llY ovdruar.d ,nd or. b6.d o
.rp!drrion. urrutur.ev€nb thrt hay hav. . liMn.hr imprd on rhr company .nd rh.i .,. bd/,ve, ro [.,e onable

t. N!.:iur.nr.trtoll.l v.luii
a trumb., o, rh€ co piny\ a(o cr. thc m.riur.m.^r o, hn vab.i, Io. borh
hn.nor.hd non.lin:roil rscB..d riabrrtrrer

h dar.,hmins rlr hL,alue o, rrJ rhrn.irr i'truumenk, rh. company us.e . vni.iy ol n!(hodr and $nprionsrl,ar
are b ed on m k.r rondilion5 .nd rr3 .x na ,i ..rh ,.roni^!
.nuunedh.ve over.ll r.rponribiliry lo' ovrsq.hs ajr!]3nrri..nr htr v.1ue 6.!u..nentsi r.dudru l.r!l3l.rr vd!.r
and r$e$m.n$ th rhe,. valuarion.6.€r rh! r.qulr.d..t oI r.d At. fte fr?thDdr us.d ro d.r.r6'.. hn vrru.

'ndude 
dir.ounied.,rl',low inily.ir/ rvarl.ble quored rna er lri..s..d d.al.r quoter. Arlm.rhod! ol sre$in! htr

trorvaluc,.nd!u.hv.luem.v n'vsr.dGllyb. r..lr.!d.

F,r vallB:'e. e3orr.d ihro dl,.r.nr l.vcl. 'n. hk vatu? hicnrthy bried on rh. rnpuk 6.d 
'n 

rh! vrL.non
ie.hn'qr*.rtollow:

t.v.l 1: quor.d pftes lunrdjun.dl
. Lcver2r,.puaorh.rrh3.quo(edo,...,hdudednt.vdrrhit oob!.ryabtororrh!an.rorrhbtLiy,erher

. r.vell,hplrrorrl'. !.rorli.biliryrh.rn.norh.donob4rvihl.m k.rd.lsnohssrwbre'npuRl

.- cnn.rl .co$rlrt lu4.menc rd key $u .rol. hntrloirr(. rlnty
[' rh. dpDl'id'oi o,ll'e cotrD6tryt 3(olnriB pohqgs, the m..3.'n.nt ts rcqutr.dro mrt.,ud..m.nts,.n'matetaM

ofr r. hr..d on hnton.rleDe ...c and ot[e, fado6 lr|t .rc .onrd.rcd (o he

'e.optrr.il'nrlrcp. 
odnwhtrhrh rf.ds.trryrh. p.rodor rrtr hr"o!.ndrurur!

oonodr ir rh. revEro. rlredrLorh.utr.nr ind lurur. D.,iodt



M.hrndra rnr!8rar.d 3urft$ tolulron3 Pnlal. r,ihrt!d

Nok.rorhol'n.tr!l.lrrkn.nB 1., th. v.r !nded M.(h !r.:0)r
rl !laillk.trl r(.outrllis poliilot

A*.8 r.d I'rl iti.r a,. .lasilied rs curcnr o, Noi -Cuiicnr p{ th. p,oveoni or lhc s(hedure lll norll'ed und,
rhecohpanio! a(,20lt.nd compaiy'3 no,mil op aiiit .yd! 3.!.don ih!i ur.orb6in.sand n. id'vd.r, rhp

nna,vda ar r*.rve 6onrh3 {or rhd pu,po$ or cu o.r & Non- cu,i.nr d ni.rloa
olA$eB & l'.b,riucr

u proDc y, phnr .nd cqurpmenr

r. (oi,led d th.tr orieinir.on lcs.&omuh(.d deD,eodrion.nd i(onuhred

li. 0.prc.iaUon r! ra.otnl.od !o.3lo rrn. oll rh!.on o, a$ots l.s rn.tr r.nduilv.l0o. ovr. rh.tr uhrollive!,
u.iu nE nr.i3h!lrnr merhod Ih. enlm:l.d u*ru riv.r,,sidurlvrlud ud d.p'..i.iioi m.rhod.rc r.vi.wed

r6e cnd of.a.h r.ponha p.nod, *ith 16..lr.cr o, rny.h.ru.. rn..i6....(ouhr.d lor on i pro.p.divc

Ihe enifr ed!klulli,eused rud.r.rn'rnrde!r!d roi l!l

I - 15Y.aB o,lh.l. .poriorl

qulpmcnr n dore.olnkcd upon dirponlor whsn no rutu.! c.o.onk bensllt o.c
.rp.ded ro 3rs. rrom rh. (otrrlnu.d us! or rh. rser. Anytri. o, ro$ a.,rns on rh. disposalor,.!r€nenr ol.n
nch ol D,opg y, phn( .|d equlpn'cnt k dsrsm'ncd tr the dil.r.n.. herwe rh. t.hs D6.erdt ..d (h.
eqin, inoun(olihe a$e( indk re.o8Nad in p.olir orlos

rnhqibls r$.k wrh lin . ursfullvB ttur.re.<qui.d pp.rlrcly a,e..ried .oi r.s a{.umul.ttrd amo ir ion

nre ci n sd ur.aullirs indrmortc ionhErhod . reviowod rt tho od ol ea.h ,.po,l'q pr od, w hrhe.rledoi
rrntibl. r*ets wrh 

'hd.nnne 
ororul riv., rh,r r.

o(runod rc0lcrely e. cd d.on l.sr..un,uhred hpi.me lo$et.Ihe (!.rrl rrl. .orsider.d lo. re( 
' 
rht

dmr b.n.rB . .xp{d.d rroh or. or dEFBar
Gainsor loses 6ins lrom derd.osnrtion of.n i.ranslbl€ ,or, fre..urod.r rh. dllr.rei.. b.rwoen rh. ndrd6po.al
Dro.e.di,trd rl'!. 

'vos 
imoudr.l th..*.r,.r. r..osnBld h p,or'r orlo$whenrh. rset trd.re.osnald

d. hlannrc or cis'6r. rnd 
'nr,ns'hh 

i$er
Ar (hc snd ol e..h r.ro ln3 psnod, rhr Conpiny r.qers ihd . ryi'rt amount ol ik raryiblo and inhryilrl. .seG ro

dE:non lut lho.. as.l. hrvc rula.r.d an 
'mDanm.nl 

log
eyns, $. r..ov.d hl. .hounr ofrh. i*d k.nr ar.dLiorddrod.r..hrn.rh.enentolrh.i6p.xno.r10$(lanvl.
wh.n h r not po* br. ro. 

'm 
e rhe r..ov.r.6le rnounr th. comp ,y enmst.r r6e

re.ov.rabl. rmooDr oI rhs .ishj.n!r.ti.r uitr ro wh(h rh.r$.t b.lon8i wh.n. reason,bl. ,nd .onrn.nr baiL oa

'nukrion 
dnb. 

'dEiririe4.o@or 
e a$.( no ako rlkt.r'd ro'ndividu.l.arh.r.N, inl u iB, o' urh!,*Le rh.v re

rllo.ltd ro d,e,nrlen B.oopo, r a3onabli,nd.onsm.nt illddo. b R rm b.

hlrngihle.$eb w h irdclLiiiu urefullive,:nd nhn3Lbr. a$eb nor yet .v3il:bre ,o, u5€ e ren!d ror i'.panmenr ar

kin a.nu.r]y, rnd wh..ev{ rher.

flecov.,.bl. imoonr tr 16! h4hc, ol hn vatu.1.*.on. or dtri6J ,'i vrlu. i. us.. r. !$ss'm v3luln u5e, rhe

?n'h6r.d lurur..r$ llo*,a d rn3 r p,.rrx dii.ount rare th.( refledr &tr.nr

'nrk.t 
l$esm.nB ol thi nn. v.lu.or mon.yi.d tho iikr.pedl'. to th. $lrorwhthth..n'n .!orrurur..ash

fl owrhavrnot boor.djun.d

l, thc r..ove6bl. aoounr o, an a*.r (or .ash{.n.rrini unrr) 1...!n ed ro be l.$ th.. rl.. rvr,'! .frounl, rhe
.r y,n3 rnount ol ih. .$.r (or .sh.r.n.nring u , i! r.ilu..d ro r ,..ov!r.hl! .mount
re&en Fd rmncdnrclyi,r p,or o, ro$

when rn 
'mp. 

mlnr ro$ luhseq onr or rh. .$er lor a .rsh 3.nc,.rnc !n l tr
I iB re.ovemblr a.'ounr, but.o thi
v.b..n dliermhadhid no'mp n. r ro be.n rerosns.dro, rr'e'scr (or.,rr

sehctnB Untr) in prior yc r.Ar. 3itr.d nmedhtelyL.prohro,ros.

hvenmenr held rs lon3'i.'m iovo( onts a.. n:red .t <on .onp'i3in3 .t a.quBilio. and incidenhr exFn..r l.B
oenarenr d'mioulon valu..'lanv cunn invenmcn!arevrlu.darrh.lowr.or.onaidrai.viluo



lvrahlhdrarnlegraledaunnesrsolullonrPrlvaletl lt!d

NotcatorhcliaD.l!lnatcmcnl.lorlh.vcdetrdodMrrh 3r,202,

'. 
sri. ol *rurd ir r.ro$tr.d wh.n lh...rvi....'. r.ndndd

al. Revahua3 on lim. & n.l.ri.l.ont.d. . r!.osntr€d i.th. rcl.r.d FrukB...pdlo.m.d rnd r.vsnu6 tom
n'. ..d ol th. lo{ b'llillg ro nr 6alah.. rh..r d . k...os.ir.d.s Unbill.d,.v.hu.! Th! unhirled r.ydnu..
pim ily.on!i.l'ol.u. whkh nrodr ro hobrll.d rodre.r on.on plusm.,ti. b$k wh.E rh.re ir nou...drrnry
:r ro maa&r.o.nr or . oll.da brl'ry oa .onrd. br io..

iir. [e. ba3ed rtr.nel....ounr.dlor on!d evi,'s rps.iriedmil..un6

'v. 
[unh!,, ,evenuo k re.{nGed whcn ro rha h.asor!'r.nr o. .olled.bil[y ol

lntorcn h.one lrcn , linrn.i.l r$.t k rc.q.i!.d wh.n 
'l 

a probabl. thar lhd..onoml.b.n.riri wrllflowrorhe
cohpiny.nd rh. rhounr or ln.o e. hc nc.rur.d 

',lrrblv. 
hr.r.. in.oma n a(!.d on a h6 br.it bv

rc,!r.n.. rothe pnn. prlolGcn/int.

fi.rrr.m.nr beh. tu .o.. and r.hin.rro. brn.nB
Prym.n6 ro d.in.d .onrrLtrron r.r.h.nl L.n.frt ,lan. a" r..osnisd a, .i lrplhrc ,h.n Ehploy€d hrve
r.nd.,ed..oke enritli.s lh.m io ih..onr6uioh.,

Forddr.dbsncl ,enr.m.6lb.tr.i'tphnr,tho.onoap,ovdmsboill&ird.r.,6rn.dunrurh!pro,.d.duni .dn
.d in or[.r .onprshonrv! i..ome E rctudcd 

'mmedh(.lv 
in ,!ra'.sd ram'ir! e.d

ts nor..drsiled to p,otu d, 106 pai .e,vi.t.o{ k re.osnked i. profit o, lo$ in rr'. p.iod ol. pran i.trdneN
D.l,nedbsncr r .onr .4 .,ieco,tsdd * rolow::

, iruk..Bt li^.l!drn3 iur. .. .0.! iln. and l.*.! oi.! rlm.nB and

| fi.r inr€r.n arpdir.or ii(om.j. d

Ihc co'rp.ny presenc rhg ftn rwo.omp.NnB ot dE0'.d b.ndlir .o* in prolx or ro$ ri rh.lln! n.ft'lmploye.
hctrcl s.rp.E.. cunannrnr s.h..hd lo$!rard i..ouhr.d lor.t r.n..tukc.6*.

nr r.trr€menr b.n.Iir .blisarioi r..o8d..d h rh. bil.i.e d'.ct r.pr.!.hG rh. .crurl d.Ikrr or surplu, lh ih.
coopinvt derinid b.nltir pl.d. A.y rulplus rc$hhl I'om thir ..kurirlon k li ir.d ro lh. p,B.nr varu. .r any
..ononi.b3n.r1t.v.ll.blcln rh. form ol,.lu.di tom lh. pl.mor r.du.lionrin rfio'..onuiburronr ro rho pla.s.

sho 1flm ind o$s lonsr.m.mproy.. b.nd[s
A l'.bil'ty R r!.ot.6.d lo.bon.aits I $res d ek.ie!, a.nualldrv. and i.r b!v.

.ndered rhlundtrounlsds]noun(olthsbsn.lits.xp.d.dtob.r,:id cKtun3c

t'.billt'e5 r..o3nLod h rcrp.d of rhodr.m . ploy.. b.^eriE . he..ur.d .r rh. lndirtounred :mou.r or rr'e
.nai ro, rh.,ehrsd w,t.

tiabrlitier rc.qntrad rh r.sped of orher loryi.rm emproylc benerrr .r! me.rurld rh. ,.eEnr vsiue ot rhe

.drm odrurur..ish ourflor!rrp.d.d ro b.6.dr bytu compatryin reDe.torr.'vtrer provdsd by.hplovcas upro

I.r.&enk.omD'66 otboth(utrenr ind d.lsrsd r.ro v.

Ih. hr.ur.htly layahlc li b.s.d on r.irbl. proll( lor the y. . I.xibl. prolrt dirl.d i.or'profi brrorc u,' .t
rcpo .d $ th! rdsBcnr or prcnt rnd los ba.aus or n.ns of i..onr dr oxooi!. rh.r.r. rrx.blc o, dcdld,be n
oth., ve e.id rrcm5trEr s.en.v.r l.rrbl. o. dodod,bl. n. conpany! .urenr tr h.rl.ulrtld trria G ar.srh
have b€.n emd.d or subnrnrvaly.na.rad by rh. chd o, rhe r.po(iir p..rod. Provrr on lor cui,e.r hx tr ncasued
rlF.'nourr.o.,pukd und.,sad,on 1153^A ofrhe r..oh.I Ad, 196r rnd h.h.. provisron or MII uhd.r scd'on

or,utrdd lar r. ,e.u.nt!d on r.mpon4 dille'.n..s bdw..n rha .aryinr amounr cI :s.B 
'nd 

ri.birnio. ih ihd
I'nrr il .d.oehB r.d th..or!rpondiry rirb.s.s ur.d 

'. 
th...mpurarron ol l.ribl. prcrit.0aredid tarliablrir,er

.te 3!..tlly rc.o3nRd ,or .ll r.rabl. r.mpora,y difi...n..r. D.,onod tar fui.s ,e g.n.rally rc.os.i,.d ,or .ll
dedodlble r.npoory dilts.n.€. ro th€ .n.nt rl'ar ii h p.ob.hl. rh.r tar.hl. proltr wrll b..v.rlrbl. agihn {hkh
rhorr d.dudibr. r.rr9or.ry diflcrui.es .an 6e vnl,rd. su.h d.lercd r.r .seB :nd r'.b'lin.. ir. .or rc@!nk.d 

'r 
th.

toipoi,rydll,e,en.c.rr.er l,!n rh. inirirr rc.o3hitiotr (drh.' rh,. 
'n 

a buin.$ (onbnarron)o, r$eB and lr.bili e! th
r ur.sadio. (l':t 3af..che(hc' lh. hr.Ue D'olrt nor rh.a&ourrr.gproft

n'..:ry'n3 rmounr olddae ed r.t.*.ts r. r.vi.wed .t rhc .nd o,
ih.r n no lon3.r prob.bl. rhd .urnd.nr Lr.6l. pbnr I hc av:rh6r. .o .llow rll o. D or rh! r*.r ro h.

Oclerod hr lr.brhlios rnd as.G rr.n..nr.d:t rlE t.r rr.. lhd a
l'.biliiy l, senbd o, rh. aser redhsed, bd.!d on r., r.r.. l..d Gx r.w, rl'd hav. hcctr enrded o, ru6n.nnvc[
eod.d6Y 16...d orrhe rcpo rni p.rcd.

Ih. moa,ur.meln dl d.loire,i r.r lrsblrhre! .nd .$et r.fled. rlE rr.on*qu!ncd rh wouldloLlowrrom rh.'nrnn.r
he.nd ornrrcDo rne p.,iod, ro re.ov.r or !.t1. rh..rrv,B rma!.i ol ns.*.t



Mrri idrdrrr4!rrlodBunn.s5o nrotrr Priv.re r.i ircd

cu('nr and d.l.r.d ra ....o3 ihey rohreronemrlh afrr..osiB.d,n orh.,
in.qur(y, in whi.h. ., rh. .urenr.nd d.l.n.d rar.ro.ko r..oa.n.d 

'. 
orh.,

.ompr.heBrv. in.om. or dLr. lyl

h, For.'s. eehrnse sal.. rn'l lo$or
It.l.x v.lu. oln..n(rr$r.Bd. !r..h,n.d ii lh for.i3h.ur.n.y ahd ranr .d
.r rhcspor rls rho r.d of.r.h,.ro,l'ff oeaod.

L. to, lorelstr .!(.n.v d.nohinrt.d lin.ndrl as.n nrisu'.d .t ifro trrd .on ind fvlPl, rhr .ehrh3.
dilf!'.n.qr aro r..ostrised rn p.ofir or lo$.K. lo, rl'os. whkh rr. dolii od as h.dsha i..rum.nt ,. i
h.dsifi r.rationlhln

ii. chrm.r 
'n 

th. ai'ylu .hounr o, rnv.irm6nrr ln equny hn.uh..G d tvtocr..hrr.s ro rhineo! in lor.isn
.urcn.yr.r.r c rcrornB.din orh

ro' rh. purpor.. oa rd.oaih'ng lo Vlocl d.hl innron.iB e roaud .! liianlrl
isecme.ruredaranurn.d.on Ilurrhecx.h...dirloren..sotrrh..mo'tRod.o( oro.qnr.6dihuor'rorros
rnddher.l[n3.shrh.r! valu.o kadhorhr..ohproh.nnv.rn.on.

,'nan.j5l a$.r. 
'd 

,i6i.ia! liariilii'€r a.. r€.or(Eod slron o comlany enr[v be.od.r r pa y ro rh. ro.nadudl

Fihan(.la*.*.nd llnrn.hl l,.bllrtie, :,. inllirlly m.is!r.d i ran valo..Innia(tion.orrt ih rra dtr.dly ilnibuubl.
lo l6e a.quiiiiion or Eur o, aman.ial .$elr .id lln:nnrl lhbrllrre! lorhs rh.n fli.n.l.l i$.r .nd Ii^..dn l]rblliri.u rr
Irk v.luc rlnou8h p,orn o, hs) ar. .dd.d ro o. d.du.r.d f,om the lar v.lu. o, rhe ftnan.iil a$ec or fLnin.ral

I re.osn Dn. Thnr.dloi (on5 dth.rly Mhor.6l. ro rh! ..quHron or llnrni,ll
rneliorllnrn(r.llhbrlflc!,.rrvrluerhrouShprollorlo*.r..o3.rcdinnedirr.ry.nprotuo,ros.

l nnin.i.lr$.r..d...ogir..d:nd d.r.@3nrredo. r r.d! d .h!t.. R.Btrl.r wry
qud)r..! or sler .rc pukh:r.' o ut,. d.ri?.ry uf .oB *irhih rh r n. r,amo
.rJblEhed by,cslh(ioi or.o.vc.

All r..oanirld ,in d, es,i. ,r. rubs.qu.nrly nr:.ur.d li llu .nriory .iih.r .mo^i$d ..n or hn valu.,
d.p.ndih3 on rh.d,$iti..ron ol th.lih.ndar rset!.

rl'e conip y applier th..pe.l.d dedn lo$ Eodel lor r..ord0E in'p.tr,nanr lo$ oi aimMala$.$ nerswed.r
an'd{R.d .o$, nad. ,!.dribl6, othd .onrrdu.l rel,k b re. veosh d orher ,ln:r.!l .$!r

shred rv.6t. d, d.d( lo$0. wnh $e ,.spedue n*s ol d.raun.!.unrns a! rh.
.b.twlon all.ohtdual. h loui rhat .'. du. to thr corp:ny 

'n 
reo.d.i.c w(h

ri.(h.cd prny.4edr ro re.eive {'... alr..,h sho.l.rlrl.

o.r..o3nltlon olilnrn.l.l.s.t
rhe Con'p ed.rlrosiEotilh..(trli*er*hcnrhc.o triduirqhGrorhe.ash,lowsfro rh.r$d.xp e,o,wh?n
ir r.nr,!rrhe Li,.err:s.r and rob rnri,rryin th..it. aid ).waril!or ownetrhipol lrras.r roanolh.r p iv r,

,qaln, ruuiaiiiarly .ll th. .Er. and,.w,d, orowir(hiD and.odinu!. t!.oh!dl
rhe rrinrlerod in.r, th. co.,nany...o3h6.! trs rebrn.d r .ren h rh! 3*!r rnd rn rso.r.r.d lrbilIy,or amounb n
n.y havo ro p.y. rl the comFiy rekrnt lu6(rnti,lly ill rhs riks ind,sw d3olownerhip ol. kin,l.red,inln.ial

c.oinii. rh. li$irilr s.r .hd also ,r.osnkoi. .onal.hll..d bo'rowins ,or lhe

oi dar..og. ron o{ r Iinmdal rser ln n3 .nrr.ly, lltr dlrlordn.. lr.r
rhf .onrdention r.(.ivgd .nd ....,vrblo .nd th. .omulatlv. saln or los rhat had b.on ,o.osn6od 

'h 
.tho'

.o6p'ohenrrvc h.on'c rnda{.umulr.edrn.qu yn rc.oanilcd h prorir or ro* llsu.hs.in orlo$ would hrveorho'w s.
b..n rcosnh.d 

'n 
prol[ or losond6p8.lofthat I'irnd.l.ser.

Alllrntrrhllhbililr.r..ubs.quanllv6.aru,.d.lrnonBed.osudhsr[..lred,v.int.,.nm.rhodoi.rrWPt

rlnrn.l.l lloblllll.. sube.qu.nlly 6...ur.d.r.oo{rr.il.o'r
f,trannill,abrl[E. !h n. nor h.ldJorrirns md....or;liff sd r. fvrP!rr! m!.!ur.d.t.mo ie.d.on.r
rho.nd of rub.eque[.&ounrrns porrodr.Ih'. ryrns rmounr ol rr^rndallrrbilrir.r rh.r.r. rub!.quonN tuersur.d
ata'no4E.d.o< .dct.rm'o.db.!.donrhe.lled'v.'nr.r.nm.rhod.rnrsre4e&.rcllEttr.ot.apnrk.d*D r
o,.on: ol 3n a$.r B,ndtrdedrnrhe,rinrr,.o.a trn.[en,.

Ths elred'v. 
'nter.. 

n.rhod E a n.thod or .rl.ul.rtrg thc.mo 6.d (on of i r'nr&.| l'rbl y Jnd oDlo. hr
,nro.on.$ei.e ov{rhor.lev. penod. Ih. .ll.drv. inrer.n Gk l he nr. rh.r .rrdly dtr.olis onin odluru.e
.8h piy'h ! lLidudhg.n rra3.& pornBlald.r rs.e'ved rr'.r rorm an ihresrrlp.n ol rhe.l,e{Lv. nt.,!{ dte,

rhi o{ dnountl rh,ou0h thc.rp.ded l[. ol rh. ri.Jnnrrl,rb']rly, o' {ah...
.ppro!".r!).n'o s Fr od, ro rh



Dor..o3nilloi ol rlnandal lhbillll.t
.il liabrr(es when, and only wheh, rhe compa.r'! oblig.riotr! e dr.h 8ed,

iin.elr.d o, hav. crrn.d

rd.rc! . d.nitlcdas rr'rn.c e8

olrho re*eo', il rower,:r rhe pr.ronivar!d olrhr m.nih!m leacp.ymrnB lhe.o a3pondi.!)nbilty to (he r.so. B

i,(rudc'l h rhtr balin.e n'..r ic.l c c.rearpo ion.d b.rwe.n lnln.e erp.nre
aod reirudion ol rh. r.rs.obl,rnio 1i.l.,.n otrth...naini.d L.hn..oa rh.lhlnl y

ey re dire.tly.llnbur.bl. toqo.liiyrd9 .!b,

'.whth.!sc 
lhlv ..aplbln.d 'n .r,l,ol(l.i on 6orow'n..o{ conln4enr

renGk,e rerornned exponsei" rl'o poriod in shi.h rh.y e r(ured.

e .ksdi.rally r..o3n 2'd on a n.a'rhr lrn. bain dv.rrh. t.rn orrh. '.liv'nrl.6c wh.r. rh. 
'onhka,e 

n,udur.d solelyrorndeasernlrne wlrh erp.ded3..er. in,lalon ro.omp.n!d. ro' rh.
,.d ihnE y.a, in whrhru.h b.tr.r'rs a<,!..

P@virion. iro r..oriieid shri rhrL-onparyh a p,o$ntoblrcdioi {l.arl o' .on.rudiv.l a3 a r..uk o,a p rcv.trr,
ill ba'aqur.d t..rnl. rha duig,o., an'l a r. i.bl6.n'm e 6i b. hade., il's

'rhr i6.u ro.osn&d.s a provEro. E rhe 6er.{,frne orthe.on.rderar on requlr.d ro..d. rhe pr.!.it oblEa!dn
rh..nd oath..epo i.s p.nod, ilhu rnro it.ounr rho arl!.nd un.d ah!.r.unouhding rh. obllsaron wh6n.

urovl.roi is 6.asur.d uatrr rlF ..sh ,lors .rlnr.r.d to senl. th' p,sre o[lrratlori tu ..iiy]ru .mounr ir rh. prsrent

vroeor rl&.i!l' flow! lwlEn rhe.fred oath.rlmcvllu! ordon.yi. m.r.nal)

.s/n{unad uMer rh. N.wlob3 lra n'trg a,oBhm

4,e.'netrr w[h &11!id coin'nunirv colles. nr.6e sranB .re rc .d orl asahn rh. nrin ns .rpe^..s m rr'e nore n.nr
Ur!r$uhn..rh lll 3hnr .ondirions h.ve !!en .ompl ed wih 'drtuB,. nllbe

PuEUantto a.qu6dotr ol U5 Snnth f,oh Mihrndr.V.hrl! Mrnul.du.ina t'mlt.itw.. r. hnB,y l, r0lr, rhr rnou s

relircd lo Us snn.hopemtDns. UxL,n.h harnrn.d $.trop.anonr fiomOdobn 20)1. A(ord'nalr, io i,notrnl
Glarodror.r(36i.hwi!trrlod.dinanolnsro.rhoy. 1106Ap,i120?0roM .h )02r.conseque ly, d€ amou G
lurrheyd tohapnl2o?oroM unrIo,$eye.rtomaprrl?021toMar.h2072

3 2 sur.on, r"poutn. - Ih" cIo a MDorrhe con'piny h b.en idenr i.'r i3(he ch.top.nrins De.i.ion Maks lcooM)
ar derincd bv llld As 103, Opehtitrs s.s'n{B The CooM.r.luar.r rrrconp.ov! po,lo,man.e and allo.ales
r8otrra5ha!.doh.nrnJy*orv.,iou.ps,orm re,ndtrrrorbye.otnDhv A(ord 

'nrlv, 
:.96. F ronn bnhat

boenpresc.rsd for s.osnplry [ easure ur.d ro rcpo ro rhe cooM lor tlp
purpoFsol makinEd.. nor3.bdu r.nd ..$iqicpe oma6... coDM doe! noi

rrhl..4mohslov.l heM.Maiitom.nrbelirv..rh ir6iur,rnrlyhotpddi.ahl.
roprov'd.dirrlosur. or.{eBby3

ohr4rhM.rh,?02r,rheMtrrirnyolcorpor.r.arl.r(McAlrh.ough'.oril'. 
'on, 

netrdeds(h.dul.rIoIh.
on l, rlrnd llrol5.h.dulc rrlrnd ..pplkrbl.lrom 1d ADril, r02l It. ad.ndm.nts

'1Drv{'on 
i l.pprtr.ble 

'o 
rh.comFn/)

of sdEdul. lrl, p,imrily,ehrrro :

.l cht.s! in erEr moresnhrioi re{un.m.nl.lor..nrinit.n.,n Salan.e rheet,lor c.
6i eroron.{oirv rhare.aDril

b)Add,onalddo rer!qulr.m.ntfi.p.oiiedroh*,ror.t..gehrorn.der.Eivibl..,!adepayabl.r,.aptril
wo'l hp.olres, i iiirbl.a$.B,.hrr.holdhgorpro6or.c,.k
d oEdosur.n lun(J3lw. he.n ued orhs rlBtr,or th.rp.dl'.lurporero, uhi.h ( w botrow.drombr*5:nd

dl Add rotrrln..uhro'vL,ronnotoi,lo' !!.,.on0L,in.e wnhlaveA or.o'hpii'or, nil. d..& or'hhovrblc pr.p..,.r,
lrn.nualhrior,lorn.3ndrdy ksrok.ym.nae.n.lpe6oDnsl,ck
rhe id.idnenB,. e{cnrrve and rl[ 6rouD i'ev.lu.iinRrhe..me.

d by d'v d ns rha n.r prolLr.rr., i/ bvrh. w. Ihkd.v.ra3. nu'nb.' or.qu(t
slurer ouBhndine dumt th! oenod, adju.od lor boiu..l€menc'n.quilysh ei,irriv,ts.ucddu.iBrh!p.,Dd
Dilured IPs B.on]pured hy d,vidirs rh. hdr p,!,ir ifrn hr b h! *ergr !d ivorate n!n6o' dr eqony nwd.onrdfl.d
to'd..iv'Dlhi*tPS.nd.kokrshicdrv.ragciufr! oi.qo yshJE.rh.r(ouldl',v.h.!nE.uedundn.onvlEon
ol{lldilur ve oor.nrrblqqony th .r. olhrivepor.nrrdleiuirvrh...t,rcd!.m.d.o.vo .d.s o, rh. begin.'ns olrh.
prriod, unla*6.ued ar r hre. d . Drlltiv! por!ihal.qutry ih.r.3:,e d!t€hined indrpond.nnviorea.l' p.nod
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Mahindra lntegratcd Business Solutions Prlvatc l.lmited
Notas to the llnancial statomenls for thc year ended March3!,2022

Notc No. 5 - Olher lnlan8iblo Arscts

rrr rrr.c.5 ar Mar ch 31,2022

l.al.c.('l_a!u_r!!q!lieq

!s at March 31,2020

tii .ic. rs al March 11,2022

ar Mirch 31,2021

ar March 31, 2022

US

U5

US

lnd
US

UK

lnd

US

UK

hd
US

UK

u5
UK

US

US

U5

lnd
US

U(

lnd
US

UX

US

UK

lnd
US

UK

US

U(

US

43,83
43.83

1,373.38
72.69

1,300.69

151.86)

(s1.86)

1,365.35
116 5?

1,248 83

1.97
1.97

165.50)

{6s.551

t,307 ?6

t24 49
1,\83 2l

25.48
),;48

1,315.07
1 /.02

1,298 05
(51.85)

(5r 86)

1,288 69
42.50

1,246.19

27.72
2.65

l65.sr)

63.62
!,!u3.21

76.66
1402

2.64

50.87
60.87

lo.oo)

43.83
43.83

1,373.38

12.69
1,300.6l]

{s1.86)

(s1.85)

1,165,35

-r16,52
1,248,83

7,91

(05 56)

1,:t07.r6
724.49

L,183,2t

1,315.07
)1.1!2

1,298,05

{51.85)

{51.86)

1,28116!
42 tig

t,246.19

25 48

J6.66
'14,02

2.54

60.4 t
60.87

10,00)

ArnortEalron oftheassetsaredone in a span of5 years from lhe d.te ofacquisition.



Mahindra lntegratcd gusinels Solutions Private Limited

Notcs to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

Notc No. 6 - Other flnanclal assets

(a) Sccurity Deposit
(b) lnterlrst accrued on Fixed Oeposits

Notr No. 7 - Other assets (Non financial)

As at 31 March 2022 As at 3l March 2021

(r)Advances other than capltal advances
(i)l)rcpaid rent
(ri) l)rcpaid txpensos
(iii) Unbillcd revcn!e
(rv)VAI Recervable
(rv)Othcr

fotal

Current Non- Current Non- Curront

2.55

803.67
35.17

210.38
3.56

6.09 4.65
583.78

255

1,055:3 609 !98.4)



fvlahirdra lntecrated Brriness Solutions Private Limilcd
Noloc to ft. flnancial statomenrs lor thoy.arendcd March3l,2022

Nor. No.8: Cur.nr lar..d D.l.r.dT.x

(ll Movcment in dateu.d tax halances

oal
rar ciec( ol itemt con5titutinr defe,red t3r llrbilltl.!
on rcmeaturamants ofthe defln€d benefit pl.nt

lax cflect ol ilcm!.onstitunne d6ferr.d i.x ars.ts

Property/ Plantand Equipm.ntandlntangibles3sats
Other TcmporarV Oif ferenccs

Nct Iax Arsot {l.labllltled

613 6.13

613

125.12

{e.87)
46.42

l7 e2)
19.52

(19.ss)

162 A/ 12 05

otr renr.a(treNfc ofth..lcnned lrenelit plane

Property, Plant ahd tquipment and lntangibl6 asets
Olher'f emporary Dilf orences

Net Iax Asset {Llabllltled

5l3

1,15

7t4.42
909

30.36

10 70
(18 96)
t6 46

613

125.12

{9.87)
46.42

320

8.20

Mumbai



Mahlndra lnteEraled Euslnesr solutlons Private limited
Nor.s to the llnanclal stat.menrs ,or thn vaar.nded March31, t022

Not. No, q - r v€rtm.hr

DeriErated rs talr valuo Ihro!8h Protland Lo!.

lnvesthenrs In M!rua Fundt

Aqg teqot e o hau nt ol quot e.l it\v. sr no nk
Aqgteeore onaunt oI ndtket votue ol intcttnehts

TOTAL INVISTM'NT5 C RRYING VAI UT

1l 9t

r,4Ul

!otlr No. r0 Ir rd. rc.orvali c5

h) T,ade ,e.ci!.bles conrid.r.d sood.secured
{bl i,ade receivables connd.red Eood . Unt.cured
k) l.ade receilabl6s whlch hav.3lghialcant increEse in

ld) Trade rocelv.bl.3.credlrimp.lred.
lc$: Provirhh for doubtlul debt

ol the above, trade r..eivabl6s troml

1,1,,776.47

21.90
(21.90)

t1,,417.22

21,90
(21.90)

tl,14016



Mahindra lntegrated Buslness Solutions Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

Note No. 11 - Cash and Bank Balances Rupecs lakhs

Partiaulars As at 31 March
2022

As at 31 March
202t

Cash and cash equivalents

/(// lJ.ilnfces $, th banks

/r/ Clr{rqu(,s, dr.fts of hand

Iotirl Cash and cash cquivalent

OthIr Birnk Balances

(n) lJll!nccs w 1lr Banks

li) I xe.l ll0posits with maturity greator than 3 nlonths

I otal Oth{rr Uank balanccs

2908 63

4.43
2 464 I't
1 ,46\ 4.,

2.972.66 3.926.20

612 93 264 )?

6 /2.93 264.]2

Ilq c q fr cli q !i9 rlo-f- Ealh air d-Ealh_!-suty-qlluls

Prrticulars As at 31 March
2022

As at 31 March
202 L

ol.al Cash and Cash Equivalents as per Balance Sheet
dd: {lank Overdraft

dd: Cash and hank balances included in a disposal group held for sale

otal Cash and Cash Equivalents as per Statement of Cashflow

2,912.66 3,926.)0

2,972 66 3,926 2A

Mumbat



Mahirdra hrkgraicd Bushe.. totura.nr r.rvar. Lrmlr.d

I) {r0rLhrihrr l. rrr fr d 5

rquirvShrr.r wiih volri, /rhc

Rl.hkiprolorn...rndr!ftldloErti.h.dro!qulrvt6 .r
y.ho4 6cdirr.d io on. vore po,

nr,!. Thc.omp..y dcd *.id p divld.id prcpokd by Bord or orrqd! L o6i!d b apprcsl okh.

b.rontirm.d by(l'e nr3'!hdlder ar rh! ao h.omn3aMurl6.rcralMeetiis.rnth..vunrollrqurda on,rh
rv.rr dntnbu!on or.n p'!r.renrh

(rl)Ih...l! ody.n. d:r.l Equhy rh|4r vrturdrt R,.10.ndrhir.rE hopr.r...nr..hr.r,

lrill Dcr!irtot.tunt h.ld bvrh. holdrn.6no.hr rh.!hhn.t. hordr...omprnvi th'rrrubddt.n..rid r$odd.!l

!!ahndk Hord,nrt uh !d,rh! xotdnrcorp.nv

Vrnndr.v.1,trleM'uladur!BU0
vrhrndr. Hord ic5 !'nii.d, rhe Hordir.comoanv

{ivlodair'orn'ar.ihordby.*hrMrchord.rr'ordr,qmorcrh.nre.(,lh .,l

r!)shird!o!hrinP,!mdqr

hdd bY 0ro,no(ctr flr sfd or

MaIindr. vehrcro Manur.d0rcc Liii rcd
M.r"ndn & Mah'nd6l(d
MihLnd,rHordrnsLrnor

Ma[h!,a V!hrl. MiDu'adur.Ro,i rsd
Mah ndE Hotdi"F rmii.d

tquny.har.! or R! 1oe..h with voini ri.[a

Equity !l'rr.,ulrh vorin. n.hlr
Mir'hdra ver,irk Manufad(ed rinIed
Mahi^dra&M.hndnud
Mrrnndrs Bord ia! !ri .d



Mahindra lntegrated Business Solutions Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

Note No. 13 - Other Financialliabilities

Particulars Rs. ln lakhs R5. ln lakhs

As at 31 Marah
2022

As at 31 l!4,r rc lt

2021

Other Financial Liabilities Measured at Amortised Cost
Non"Current

(o) Lease liability

Current
(o) Current maturities of finance lease obligations
@ Other llabilities

294.83
294.83

464 90
0.).)

/,.54
't52.54

590.57
0.2.2

T(rtal othcr financial liabilitios 7 59.95 1,343.33



Mahindra lnteArated Business Solution5 Private Limlted
Notes to the financial statemehts for the year ended Marah 31,2022

Note No 14 - Provisions

Notc No. 15 frade P.yables

Not( N0 l0 t)th(rliabi ilics

* Olhers nrainlV includcs salary, bonus, performance pay and other employee related payables.

I ong-tcrm Enlployce Benef its
Short.term hmployee Benefits

Particulars As at 31 March 2022 As at l1 Marclr 2021
CLrrrent Non Curr ent Currcnl

a) (i) Iradc payable " Micro ans small enterprises
(ii) Trade payable'Other than micro ans small enterprises
(ii ) Oihers - Accrued Expenses

17.51
1,084.53

r,74X.92

7.31.

1,140.91

633.57

l otal I radc l)ayables 2,246 _02 7,181.19

Pa rticLrlars As at 31 March 2022 As at 3l lvlarch 2021
Current Non Current Curr{rnt Nofl CLrrr cnt

(ir )

(1,)

Sinturory dues

Others$
562.03

2,251.43
378.98

2,650.89

l0trl Otlrur t ia b ilities 2,813.46 1,029.87

Mumbat

or.ou

;s,4o
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Mahindra lntegrated Business Solutions Private Limited
Notes to the financlal statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

Notc No. 17 - Revenue from Operations

lakhs

Particulars
For the ycar

202t^22
tor the year 2020

27

lo) R(-.v(-.nuc frolll rendcrinB of serviccs 42,119 05 19,675.a1.
Ir]tal RcvenLre from Oparations 42,7 t9.05 19,675.81

l\oto No. 18 - Other lncome

Partiaulars For the year
2021-22

For the year 2020
21

(o) lnterest lncome
(1) On fixed Deposits with Bank
(2) On lncome tax refund

(b) Dividend lncome

11) on Mutualfunds
H Profit on sale of capital assets (net of loss on assets sold / s
(d) Unrealised gain on Mutual Funds
(e) Other income

/, lnterest lncome on Security Deposit - lnd AS adjustment
(g) lncome fclr sub-lease

15,62

3 5.59

0.43
0,3 6

0.r2
5,20

15,42
54.1.8

0.49
44,12

4.76
3 9.00

lot;rl Ot her lncontc 57 ,32 757.91

Mumbai



Mahindra lnteArated Business Solutions Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

Note No, 19 - Employee Benelits Expense

al(hs

Particulars
lor the year )o21 For the ycar 2020

27

(q) Salaries and wa8es, includinB bonus
(b) Contribution to provident and other funds
H Gratuity expense
(d) Leave salary
(e) Training

/1L Staff weltare expenses

23,862.76
1,326.53

48.03
240.90

0.03

51.50

13,646.93
866.15

39.21.

14 6.10
1..1.0

38.90
I otal Inlploycrl Bcnefit Expcnse 25,529.75 14,t 38.39

Note No. 20 l:inance Costs

t',1{lte l!.r. 21 Dcpreciation and Amortisation Expenses

Partic!ilars
tor the year 2u2L

22
For the year 2020

27

lnd nS Adjustment orr Security Deposits
Less: Amounts included in the cost of qualit'ying ossets
lnd AS Adjustment on Lease Payment
Other borrowing cost

(tt)
(c)

A.7't

49.12

4.65

3 8.15
2.24

I olal flllance Costs 54.49 45.04

Particulars
ior the year

22

20)7 For the year 2020

(r)
(Ll

(()

Deprcciation on tangible assets
Deprociatior't on Right of Use of assets
Amortisation on intangible assets

lota doprcciation and amortisation expenses

3 95.61

662.61

23.77

165.97
304 33

19.84

1,081.9 9 490.14

Mumbai



Mahindra lntegrated gusiness Solutions Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

Note No. 22 - Other Expenses

lakhs

Particulars For the year 2021
7)

For th! year 2020
)1

(o) Power & Fuel

(b) llcnt including lease rentals

@ llates and taxes

(d) lnsurance

/a/ lravellinB and Conveyance Expenses

/, Nct loss / (gain) on foreign currency transactions net off Derivative gain/loss {other than
fg) n uditors remuneration and out-of-pocket expenses

fll As Auditors
(ii) For Iaxation matters
(iii) For Other services

i/hJ Oth0r expenses

/l/ Legal and other professional costs

(ii) Postage, Telephone and Communication

(iii) l'I Expenses

(iv) Scrvicecontracted

(v) Storos consumed

(vi) R&D cost

(vii) Commrssion to directors
(viii) Misccllenous expenses

31.10

480.61

98.22

787.94

!,751.03
0.54

32,27

7.02

1.50

6,487.82

437.76

3 20.51

2,580,25

489,62

138.93

10,00

?.72.93

24.01

288.0u

tt.26

353,s2

777.69
J,51

L47
1..00

2,00

7,26t.58

275.13

264.58

644,98

11,43

20.61

1lt.00

146.27

lotalOth{rr Ij xpc n scs 14,321.99 4,044.46



Mahindra lntearated Business Solutions Private Limited
Notcs to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

Note No, 23 - Current Tax and Deferred Tax

(a) lncome Tax recognised in profit or loss

(b) llo.onciliatiorr of income tax cxpense and the accountin8 profit multiplicd by Company's domestic tax rate:

For the year 2021

Current Tax:

ln respect of current year
ln respect of prhr years

Deferred Tax:
1n rosp(:ct of current year origination and r{)versal of temporary
diffcrc.nccs
Ot l'r e rs

oral iircoll]c tax cxpcnse on continuing operations

506,57

(18.7e)

178.85

(8.1.9)

For the year 2021

22

tor the year 2020

2r

I)rof r br'foro tax lrorn (ontinuing opcrations

A ri.r ( i l)ia Iax Rat(l

.xl)artl(,rl ifaOnto tax cXpcn5aS

llcaL ol n( o[_ia that s exerrpt from taxation
I1(r.t()1 .xp.i!estlratisfon.dodu(:tbl0 n determ ning taxab e profit

O1l,',.,

n dl'usl ments recognised

tax of prior years
in the current year in relation to the current

'Iol;,1 nconic t;rx txpense roportcd

7,744.75

25.11%

450,19

37 .44

515.7s

25,1.1%

129.80

(0,12 )

(0.04)

41..02

487.88 1? 0.6 6

487 ,48 170.66

487 88 1 10 {;6

lakhs

Particulars tor the year 202U

)1

506 6i 178.85

487.88 770,6(,
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Mahindra l tegrated Business Solutions Private Llmited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

Note No, 24 . larnings per Share

Particulars As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021

Basic Earhings per share
Irom continuing operations
f:rom discontlnuing opcrations
Total basic eamings per share

Dilutcd Earnings per share
[]rom continuing opcrations
f:(xn drsconlinuinB operalions
Total dilutcd carnings pcr share

Pcr Sha rrl

I 3.51 s.95

13.51 9.95

I3.51 995

13.51 9.95

Nrt J)rofit Aft{rr lax i clu dinB Total corrpr(jhensivc income for the period 1320.81 1", 18

wslgl!ed Avcrrse no. ol shares 9).195 ll) /(l
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lvlahindro lntograted Busirldss Solutions Private [lmjted
Notor to th. financialstatcnentr forthe yearend€d March 31,2022

Notc No. 26 - rair Valuo Measurement

IalrValuation Tochiques and lnputs ured - rocurrint ttems

I irrao.ia a$.t5/ tirancia liab litrrs

) Muturr{!nd rvcsr rts

lrir{,i,|,1.,irr,,tr.r\!..r ri.l lr!.1)andl.!.illorr.r.!rrndiarra!.m.a!ur.m.nlsdIinBtreycar.

Ir r vrl\rc of n.ir ./. r!\ctr dnd frn.n(ia raDiltiesthatarenotiicasuturdatfairvatuc

Fair valuc hierarchy as at 3l Ma(h 202

trade and olher rccervables

depo9iti dird rrnilar assett
11176.07 t1716.07

237.06 237.06
1.73 7.13

7],477.).2 !t471.22
194.4 194.4
7.218 1.278

1,78t19 t,)8119

tl,71641
231.A6

7.73

liDrr.i)l t)1.,tttnrdt5 not ta ied at toirVoluc

.Olhcr5

irad"" n.d or[(r pirrablcs

lrad€ i.d othfi rcceivablet
deposrts and simrlar assets

2,146 0) ),)4641

rair valuc hierarchv as at 31 March 202r

),)4t a)

LcvclT

1,141 It

l.avel I I

,,)suunlertt noteot edot loitVolue
rl!de and ottrer payables

L 

"lr1l 
o/ /lrr,rrJrJ!:or

\\,471.22
794.40

1.28

t1,t76 01
231.06

/.ll

!t,4?122
194.40

1)a



Mahindra lntograted Buslness Solutlon3 Private Llmlted
NotEstothe financbl statoments for theycarendad March 31,2022

Note No,27- Employec beneftts

(a) Definad Contrlbutlon Plan
IheCompanytcontributiontoProvidentFund,S!perannuatlontundandESICagSregatlngRr.1035.65Lacs(2021rRs.866.15Lacs)has
becn r{rco8nised in the Sl.tementof Proflt or Losr underthe head Employee Eenefits Expense.

The CompanY has voluntary contribut€d in 401(k) relirement plans coverinS su bstintially all the employees ol U5 branch. The Branch
maynrakaannualcontributlonstotheplansequaltoaunifoimper€entageofpartlclpantcompensation, ThecoltortheBranch's
contibutions charged to expense related to 401(k) confitbutions was Rs 13S.30lacs forthe period ended M arch 3t,2O?_2.l2O2L

the company has contributed lowards workplace pension plans coverlnt su bstantlally allthe employees of ux branch. The cosr of rhe
grancht contributions charged to expense retared ro emptoyee was Bs 155.58 taca for the pertod ended March 31, 2022.

{bl Deflned Ben€flt Plansi
6ratulty
The Company operates a gratultyplan coverlng qu allfying employees. The ben€llt payable ls the greater ofthe amount calculared as per
the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 or the Company scheme oppllcoblc to the employee.lh€ beneftt vests upon comptction of five years
of continLlous teruice and once vest€d it h payable lo employees on retlrement or on termlnation of employment, tn case of death
whiie in service, the gratuity h payable krespectlve of v€stint. The Company ,nakes annual contributton lo the troup gratutty scheme
admhhtered by the Lire lnsurance Corporation oftndia through its CratuityTrud Fund.

ThrouBh iG dcflnod benefit plaos the Company is exposed to a number ofrisks, the most significanr of which are detaitcd betow:

Assel volatilitv
The plan liabilities are calculated unnS a dlscount rale set with references to tovernment bond yi€lds; if plan assets under perform
compared to th€ governmeoi bonds discount rate, this will cr€aie or increase a deficit. The deflned benefit plans hold a signtficanl
proporlion of equity type assets, which are expected to outpe{orm Sovernnrent bonds in the lonS-term while providing volatility and
nsk in the short"tcrm.

tu lhe plans mat!re, the company intends to reduce the level of investment risk by lnvesting more in assets that better match the
liobilitifs.

llowevcr,lh€ Company bellevet that due to the long-tenn nature of ihe plan llabilities and the str€n8th oflhe ruppodinttroup, a Ievel
of.ontinuilr8 equlty type investments ls an appropriate element ofthe Company's long term strategy to mana8e th€ plans efficrenrty.

eh3nees ln bond vields
A dectease in Sovernment bond Yields will hc.ease plan liabilltles, although thh is expected to be pa lally offset bv an Increase in the
va lue o f the pla nt bon d holdings and interesl rate hedging instru ments.

hllarrqui*
Some ol the Companyt pension obligations are llnked to inflation, and hl8her inflation wtll lead to hi8h€r tiabiliries {atthough, in mon
cases, caps on the level of inflationa.Y lncreases are in place to protect the plan aSainst extreme inflation). Ihe plan5 hold a significanr
pri)porlion of assets in index linked gilts, toSeth€r with other inflation heddn8lnstruments and atso asseB which are more toorety
collelated with Inflatlon. However an increase in inflation will abo tocreasc lhe deflcit to some de6ree.

!ile-sIp!ftosY
The maio.ity of the plan'5 obligations are to provide bBnefils for the life ofthe member, so increares ln llfe expectancy wlllresult tn an
increasnln thcplBnl liabilities. This ispa(icularlysignlficantin $e Com pa ny's deflned benefitplans, where inflationary increares rcsutr
in highar sonsitivlty to changes in llfe expecrancy.

Ihe significant actuarial assumptions used for the purpose3 ofth€ actuariatvatuations$Jere as follows:

Valuatlon as at

31"Mar-22 31-Mar-21
Discouni rate(s)

Expected raie(, of salary increas€
6 85% 6 45%

I5A%



Mahindra lntegrated Buslness Solutions Private Llmlted
Notes to tho flnanclal statements for the year €nded M atch 31,2022

Dcfinod benellt plans - as per actuarial va luatlon on 31st March, 2022
Anrouflsloco8nisedincomprehensiveincomeinrespectofthesedefinedbenefitplansareasfollowsl

lxpenies recognised in statement of protir and loss for the year

Pan scrvice cort and (sains)/losses from settlements

of d.fined befei t costs rccognGcd in profit or loss

A{r.olln scd in Othcr comprchefsive incomc Ior thc ycar
on lhe net defined beneflt liabllitv

of plan assets (excluding amunt lnduded ln ner interen expense)

Eains and loss aris ng form chanEes in financial assumprions
gaLns and loss arhinB f orm experience adlustments
Balnr and loss arlsingform chanees in demographic assumptions

oi nof f.d b!,ncfit cosls n)coI.lscd in othcr conrprehcnsive n(ohe

lll. Net Assot/ll.iability) recoEnisod in the Batance Shect as ar 31st March
1. Pres.nl value ot delined benefit obli8arion as at 31sr March

talrvaluc olplan assels as at31st March
Surplus/(oeficit)
Currert po(lon of the above

l
. ChatrEe in ihc oblitation during the ycar ended 31.st March
Prcsenr value of defincd ben€fit obligation at the beBinning of the year
Add/lt.ess ) on a ccou nt of Sch ern o of Arrannem enr/8u s in ess Tra ns fer
Expenses Recoqnised in Ptolit und Loss Account

.Cullent Servrce Cost
- Lfiercst txpense {lncome)

,l. Eecagnited in Othe t Cnmprehe nslve lncone
Rcnleosurement soin5 / llosses)
- Aciuarial Gain lLos, arising lroml
i. Dem osraphic Assu m ptions
ii. Fina n cia I Assumptions
iii. Experience Adjustments

6. Others {Specify)
7. Presont valua of detlned be nelit oblitation at th6 end of the yaar

V. Chango in falrvaluo ofassets durlns the year ended 31st March
l. Fair value of plan assets at the beSinningoftheyear
2. Add/(Lest) on acco!ni of Scheme ofArranBement/Buslnesr Trsnsfer
j. fxpenses \ecognised in PrcJitond l.oss Account
- l:xpected rcturn on plan assets
4 Recognised in Othe( Conprehensive lncome
Re ntcosurcinent qdins / (losses)
-ActualRcturn on plan assets in excels ofth€ expected returfi
-orhers (sperify)

5. Convibuiions by employer (including benefit paymenrs recoverable)

7, Fak value of plan assets at the end oftha year

Vr. Iha Maior categorias of plan assets
'l.ist the plan asrets by caieSory here

InsurorManaSed Fund

vll. Acluarial assumptlons

2, Expectedrate ofreturn on plan asgett

258.85

42.O9

15.62

(8,881

732
(19 05)

240.34

32.54
14.51

4.95

lr7 22J,

(19 58)

173,62

70.17

25.08

38.93
119.051

L8l lr8

77.2t

0.91

179.35 7 t1.6',)

229.35

6.85%

\73.62

6.45%

Mumbat



M.rhindrr lntcgrnt.d Busin.ss Solu!ions privato Limited
Nokrs to th0llnanc a stat.nr.nts for thc ycar lrndcd Maich 31, 2022

Dnposilr wlih lnsurance companies

Thc above sensiiivitY analyscs are based on a cha6g€ ln an assumption whlle holding alloiher a$umptions conrtant. tn prtsctice thls is

unlikelytooccui,andchan8esinsomeoftheassumplionsmaybecotrelated.Whcncalculatingrherensiiivityofthedefinedbenefil
obliSationtosignificantactuarialassunrptlontlheramemethod{presentvalu€ofrhedeflnedbenefirobligationcalculaledwrthihe
projectad unit cr€dit method at the end ofthe repo(lng period ) has b€en applied as when calculattngthe defrned b€nefit tiabttity
/ecoSnised in lhe 0alance sheet.
Ihemelhods and lypcs ol assumptions used ln preparingthe sensllivlty analyses did not chan8e compared to previous period.

Ihc Comrrany expects to contribute Rr.2,000,000 to the SratultytrusB durin8the next flnanciatyear.

Xl. Maturlty prollle of defined benellt oblltatlonl
2022

2 3 year

Ihe falr value of Company's pension plan asset;s of 3l March 2022 and 2021by care8ory are as foltows:

57.00
33.18
23.44
51.91
19.28

380.73

2022

33.23

38.58
27.75
18.57
4).29

32A.91

2021

,) 19.1!

The Company's policY is driven bY consideranonr of maximlrrg r€turns while eosuring credit quality of the debt instruments. The asser
allocationfor plan assettis determined basedon inveshent criteria prercribed under the hdian tncomeTaxAct,1961, and is atso
subjectto olhcr expoture linritations. The Com pany eva lu ates the ri5k5, transaction cosis and liqu idiry for porenrta I tnvesrm ents. ro
measure p an asret performance, the Company compar€s actual returns for each asret calegory with published benchmarks.

Ihe wei8hred averaE€ duralion of the defined benelit obligation as at 3l March 2 O22 ts-1.29 yeat t l212!t't.lg yeats)

The expected rate ofreturrr on plan assets is ba5ed on the averag€ long lerm rate ofreturn erpected on investments ofthe fund durint
tho estimated ternr of obligaiion.

rh. enimale of futuresalary increases, conrid€rcd in actuanal val0rtion, takes ac(ount ofinflation, seniority, promotion and other
relev;nl factors, such as suoplv and demand ln the emDlovmenr markel.

th€ current service cost atrd the netlnle.est expenseforthe year are lnclud€d in rhe employee beoeflts expens€ ln profil orloss of the
expensa for thc year.

lnFcbr!ary2019tsupremeCo!4oflndirinitsjudgemenlclarifiedthc.pplicabilityol.llowancesthatshouldb€consideredlomc.xure
obliSations ufder [mploYees Provident tund 4ct,1952. The Conrpany has been le8ally advlsed thatthere are interpreulive challcntcs
on th e a pplica tion of l! d 8em ent rel ros p€ctively a,rd as sir ch does not conside. the re is a ny prob able oblitaiions for past pariods.
 ccordingly,basodonletaladvicethccompanyhasmadeap.ovirionforprovidentfundcontributionfiomthedateofsupremecourr

Vl I Thrl olllr. drf ied benelit

Prindpalassumptlon lmpact on dafifed benollt

Discornt rate 2022
).o21

1.00%

t.oo%
'6A0% 7.85%
-7 26% A.40%

Salary Browth rate 2A22

2027
7.OO%

1 00%

7.63% -5.76%

4.12% --1.19%



Mahindra lntograted Buslness Solutions Prlvate !lftlted
Notesto th.fina..lal statemontrfortheyoar€nd6dMarch31,2022

Not. No, 28. Fair Valu. Measurement

(a)CwlP aginssdiedule

Prorccls r(rnrooruilv nBDended

 s on thc drt.o, the balanc0 shect,lhEc arc.ocapilalworl-in-progross projecls whosecomplellon i! overdue or has exceeded th. cost, bared on approle.l ptan



Mahi drn Lntcgrdt.d Ll!siness Sot!tions prtlate Limited

Mahhdra lrliis Private Li itcd {formenv known .s Mahindra Grcenvsrd private t Ma hind.a Automotive Nonh Ameri.a, t.c,
Mahrndra lrcavyLngincs Ltd, [4ahind6 North AmericanTechnic.tC..ter,lnc,
Mahrnd.a rloridayr& Resorts rndia Lrnired Mahindr. Tracror A$embty, tnc.
Malr nd.a rl?Pcpvt.ltd Mahtndra Vchiclesalesand Service, tn..

Note No,29 RclatedP.rtylransactlons

Nane oflhe prr.nt Company

Nanre ofthe (rltlmare noldtnt Conrpany

GIPIS AIRO PIY LIMIIED
GROM X AG RI IQU IPMENI LIMITED
MAI.I]NORA & MAIiINDRA CONTECH LIO
lvahind6 & Mahindra nnancialSerytccs Lrd
Mahindra Atri tol!tions Limited
MArINn8AATRWAYS LtMtleD
Mahind..AutoSreeltvl Lrd,
Mahihdra Auromobile 0istributor pvt Ltd
Mah,ndla 6.banco Dev. Ltd/Mahindra Etoomdate Dev r.td.
Mahindra Delence System Ltd
Mahrndra Ele.tn. MobtlitV Limited
MAIJINDRA II\,44R(E LTD
lvah ndra Emirares Vehicle Armoring fr LLC

MAII]NDNA IPC IBRIGATION LIM[ET'
Mahrndra Firsl Choic. Seruices Ltd
Mahrndra Firsl Choice Wh0eh l.td

Mahnrdra hlegraled lownshlp Ltd.
Mahrodia rnrertlad. trd.
Mahrn,ira Lile s p! cc Dcvelope.s Ltd,
rVohindra l.CBt cs Ltd.
Mahrndra ManolifeTr0stee Pvt Lrd
Mahnrdra lvlarinc Privar( timired
Mahro ri Auromotive Australla Pty
Mahlndra hsua.ce Erok.rs lrd.

rvah ndra Clr: Artomotiv. Ud,
1e.h r\,4ahndra roundanon

rhc rnd.n and fasteh comp.nv
Mahirdra Foundanon USA

P5! Media And Comm! nications ltd

Aquasair Dritribution Co,Pvr Lrd
Cla$E Legends Private Limited
Mah ndra Aerospace Pvl Ltd
Mah ndra A.ronruclurc, P!,t Ltd
Mahi.dra td!cariotr Sociery, lrahind.a Academy
Mahrndra rrappinen Oeveroperr Ltd.
Mahrndrd rronres Pvi. Ltd.

Mah rdra lndustrialPark Private Limiied

Mahindra HoldinSs timited

l',4ahindra & Mahindr. l.mned

lVahindE MiddleE.tr Elect ca I Steel Servt.6 Cenn. {lzc)
Mahindra MSTC ie.yclh! Pvt, Ltd.
Mahlndr. n.sidenrialOevGtop.rsLtd.
Mahindra RuralHousins Fin.nc6 Ltd
Mahhdra SteelService Crntr. Ltd,
Mahindra Susren Pvt Ltd,
Mahlhdra TIqO Frivate Limlred
t ahi.d.a Truck & B!r$timit.d
M.hindra Two Wheeler! Limit.d,
M.hindra USA INC

t\,lahindra Vehicic Ma.ufactur.c Lrd
Mahindra Wast. to Inergysolutiont
Medwell Venlure3 Priv6t. Limit6d
lreru A4obilirVToch Pvt. Ltd.
NBS lnternatlonat Ltd
V.Link lleet Solutionr Pvt, trd.
Automobill Pinitarina Gmbh

Peuseot Moto/cVcles S,A,
Mahirdra RaclnSUK Lihrted

MumbailvannaMedia t.td.
Mahlnd.a Solarire Privarc Limited
Mahindra E[in€ering & ChemicalProducts Ltd

Mahindra ConnrltinZ Insinecrs Employ.e! StockOpton ]run

Mahindra Summit ASri5cience Ltd
l/ahindra Manulfe Tr!5te. Pvt Lid
MarlelSo r.n Prtvare Limtied
MahindraTelephoncstnresratedSvstems PvtLid
Mahindra Wor d Clly Oeve opeB t"id.
Mahindra Worid City(J.ipur) Ltd,

Mah'ndra rriJu5t'iai Pa.k Private Limited lFormerly tndu3rrtalCtuster private Limired)
Mah trdra Manulife l vestme.! Mana8ement plr Ltd. (Mahindra AMC pvt Ltd)
Mah ndri rsubakiConvcvorSvstems Pvt Ltd
M & M ClPf_nrpoy€es CoopCanteenSoc Ltd
M & M ltdTractor Div afrployee Co-opCanleen Soc Ltd

r(,i,1rlLr:r. 1!i, ih!!rir L,r!01tMJr(lr 11,)l),,,,



Mahindri lntcEratcd Businoss Solutlons Private Itmlted

Dera l5 nl trrDiaclLon lrcrwe.n thc Company and trr rclared par .i ar. di5(tosed below I

r.rJ \o, rtsri r! nI baladcswitI rc]at.dparlier

Pu.cl'arc of properlV and other assett

lnt..est Paid o6 Sorowings

lcnnbu^cmcnt o, erp.nser made ro Fattes

o, exprns.s rnadc by parles

lMarch

M.r.h

3t,7072
31,202t

31,2022
31,2021

3L 2477
31,7A2t

March31,2O22
March 31, 2021

March 31,2022

M.rch 31,2022
March31,2021

Mar.h 31,2022
March 31,2021

l\iarch 31,2022
March 31,2021

-1r,2022
31,7.0)l

47,2472
31,2021

3t,2422
1t,2021

199

2.24

42.31

174 A3

539,36
309.87

1,S?1.20

)61

4,t41.32

3,219,t5
826 33

108 03

,.uo

.

356 t4
1,52

294.46
540,63

41r.87

ol18

Loafi & sdvances taken

{rnreresr acnled but hor duoon Bo owing)

17,20L2
37,2071

31,2022
31,2021

3\,2022
3\,242t

March 31,2021
March 31, 2021

10,643,85
8,358.07

98,14
236.10

,,orr.ru

55191

r{ril:Lilr,"r r 1r)rtlrf ,/.ir!rdllt arlL tr r{)77



Bu! trrss 5o !t ors nrivrtu linr t.d

2022 2A2l Explahatlon lor Chan(ein
ratio bv morc rhan 2s%
.omEar.d tonr.vlo!s vc.r

utrent A$etlc! ert L ab ty

Lcase iability/Iora tqulv
Redu.non in lease riabitirVduc

totepaymcnls and 4.r.ase rn

Debt S.rvrcc.overage Rat o
Earhi.g availablo Iordebt

249

lncr.as. rn Earnrng.va lable
lor debt servlce ai Us brrn.h
was in runcrion forenn.cyear
i.d U( branch addcd.J!nnA

Profit afier Tax/Ioial Equity

DurinS FY 20 2lUSoperatiors
were lor 3 months whereas in
FV21-22 it k in operato s,or

oDer.tio.5 na(ed ln FY 21 :12

rvenrory Turnover ratio

Tradc Rcceivable5 ntrhover ral o lurnover/f rade Receivables (11160)

lurnovar har in.reas.d dle ro
Us and Ux Branch as a r.lult
in.reasE in lurnovcr and

lGdc payab.s r!rnov€.ratio Ioial P!rchase con/Irade
r!hove.hai mcrea5.d due to
USand UK Brrn'1r a( a r.(nr
ncreare in Total p!rchasc c05t

Ntt.aPtil tu.noverrato Iurnover/(TotalA$er - cure.t &
166

T!rnoverhaslncreased d . ro

Ner pronr Alre. Iarllurfo!er

Dunng FY20.21 USopc.alon5
werc lorS months whcr.a! rf
rY 21.22 lt i! in ope.aLro.5lff

oparaiions (an.d in F./ 2l.72

Retur. on CaDrtal empoyed

oun.g FY 20.21!5 operat on!
wcre for I months whe'ca3 in
FY 21'22lii! in oOeratbnslor

operetio.3 started in FY21.22

( nterenrhcohe+Dvidend
rec.rvedl/clos ns Balance o, 0.op in inlererl.ote on Fired

5



Mahindra lntegrated Business Solutions Private Limjted
N oic5 to thc financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

Rupces lal(hs

l\ote No.31 -Capital Commitment

Capital Commltments twards Civil work, Furniture etc. 921.1.2
capital CoqIr]itnlcnts twards Plant and Machinery 396.11
Cnpital Comnlitments twards Office [quipments !;1 .56

t37 4.79

Nolc No. :]2 I:|turc operating lcase paymcnts

l{rir5c pay nc|ts rl next 12 months 39.49
Leasc paymcnts in next 1 year to 5 years 1484.63
Leaso paymcnls bcyond 5 years 111 .9

L242.O2

Mumber



Notc No.l3 Surln0ss Combh.uon

Brlel Surnmarv oltran3a.tlon
Ourn8 rhe linancial year ending Mrrch 31, 2021, Mahindr. lhregrated Busineis Sotliionr pvt, Ltd. ,,rhe CompanvL' hrs .cqutred brffch ol
Mahindra Vehicle Ma.u,acturers Ltd "MvMl." locared in Michie8an, UsA,, The ecqutsition h63 t.k.n p.ce bv er€cuu.8 busincts v6nde/
agrccmeht b.lween the company.nd [4vML(cntlti.s u[dcr common control)to tr.nslcr busine$ of Us branch a, a going corcsn on a s ufrp
sale basis,o.a lump5um consldrration without assignln8anyindividualvatuor io the tndivid!at ajret3 5nd tiabitiries

Thh b.anch provldos doslgn, engin.eringand product dev.lopement 3ervlces to Mahindr. & Mahhdra a.d it' Broup Comp.ntes, Eltecttv! date oI
acqulsition was lan!ary 1,2021.

Mrh ndra lftcgrat..d Buslnesr 5o !ttons Privrte L.imrted

As tha lransachoh look plac. between thc e.tilie3 whlch ire under common conrol, rhe Compa.y hls tottowcd pooting ot rnr€resr mcrhod
suglesledaiper 'Appehdit col lndaS 103 -Busine$ combhadon'. As p6rth. thls m.thod, the comp!nyhasrertated its financiats stareme^l ot

summErv ofconslderatton.nd dotalts ot arrots & [ablll .s a.oulred

I Valuatlon olbranchand asiets and ltrbtlttl.r !.qutred,

Ba3edor valuation done by hdependeht va lLr.6 of bE n.h the con5td.ration w.3 fix.d.t Ri 17883,74 taca.

Sr'.uaq9.ll9r-s]CrI3!.s!.p!]!
As per valoatuation or rhe companv cosnlde.ation w.s paid by way of exchange ot 82,79,51r eqlty shar$ ot Br 216 each ,{hco vatue of
Rs i0each & premrum ot ns 2061. Thir has resulted in chanse in tharehotdinS p.rternofrhe Cohpany. kefer note 12).

Thls has resuh.din negatve capital.eserveol ns955,74laciadjliiedin bala..e ol Retained earnih8s.son thedateol acqutsirion

l6alance o, r.raihed earnings o. dar. of acquisiiioh
lOther linatrcial and non-flnanci.i li.bilitEs

3,066 64 
I

s.22 I

14,314.11 
|

1l.ll4 9l 
]

4,198.82 |

-_-l



IVIilrindr.lrrtaB.alId B!si ossSotutionrnri!at.IIrited

Notc No. 34 - Leasos

Ihe coopanv hri entdred into non .ancelabl. op.ratinS lease agre.ments r.tarEd to facitirv, ofiic. equtpm.ht, machin.rv ahd equipnent and
vehlc es wiih wrvlhg re.m!.

Nonl.a5. (omponcnti

leases (hat contaln .onne.t. .ohporenc .ro ac.ount.d tor ai a linBl. componenr .nd re.orded oh th. batance shc.t ror.ertirn assct cr.$es
incl(ding laurpm.rt Noh-reare compon.nts rnct!de, but are not Ihited ro, conhon area fr.rnren.nce .nd s6tur.e arang€m.nrs.

Ih. cohpany has u.d the followinC poticies 6.d/orassumptlonr in evaturtingrh. tease popularion

Th' cohpanv cohsidc^. conrract to be or to coniain a le.i.lf th. contract.on!.yslhe rtghr to.onrrolihe u5.ot identil.d prop.rtv lnd cquipm.hr
lan idcDtiled a$ct)aora period of itme rn erchanse for conrtd.ra{on,

wh.n th! l€.3e conir..te do nol provido..eadlly determinEble rhpliclr rar., th. compsnv usG, the es nried increm€nt.tbo owing r!r. based on
inlo.ma0on avatlabl. at the lhc.ption ofthe teare. Th.drsco!nt rato is determin!d by.sr.t.tas!.

Ihe coph.fv inclldca pavment! th6r a.e b6..d on.n ind.x or Er.wirhln the..lculatior of rrShi ot wc hai.d asiet! and t!*e ti!bilit.!, rnirirly
meas!red al the lease commen.cmeht date, Therc ..e varlablo Davment3 ongtn.tion te4 tor ofltce equtphenr, mrchirery.nd eqllpment and
lhercaora are no( treatedas a pdrtoateasep.ymenB.

cerlain leass lncludeoption3 to purch.sethe ollico equipm€nt,Thc depred.bte tlle of s€ti b lmited by rh€ exp.cted t6ase term unte!3theie G.
llanslerot trll. or purchrr. opti.n r..sonabtV c.natn otex.rcts.,

Mon lea.es Include one o.dore opiions to r.newi wilh renew.lt.rms fi.r can e*ond th. tease term tomone or doreyea6.ThB€xerci5c o|eole
ren.wal optiotu i! at th. compahv! 5ot. dts.renon.

Aondualvalo. guaranteos,,6!vlc!o 3,orcdenanrs I

Ihel.aseagreomentsdonotcontai.anym6teri.tresiduatvalueguanntee!ormatsrr.tresnictivecovlnr.ts.

reases wth an rnillalterm or 12 monlh5or les tranot r€.orded on the bala(ce5h6etj the companv recolfner teale exF.nsetorthese k!a!e, on a
st.aight lrne baslsove.lhe lear.t.rm and erpense th. ars..iat.d op.rati.6 l.are co!G ro other .ipens.s in protit6nd to!s.cco!dt

rhc tabl. b.low Dresents the .ta$iftcation of t.*in8 .$etr .nd lt.biliti.s

IAE'&
Righrol-!ie ofa$crs

,lrtrillli!!
irir.i(Lcrr,. ib rcs

2S4 3l t\) 54

Ih0 rahl. bclow prosanrs the (ta!siticrtion o, ta.so,.tated erpcnrci.! rerorred an the protit atrd toi, ac.ounr

lorthc year ror th. yrir
202t 22 2070 7r

430 ril 233 0e



Mahindra ldtegrrred B!s ness solutions Private Limited

Note No 35 . Additional Dis.losures

Disdosure5 rcquked under Section 22 ofthe Ml.ro, Smalland Mediufi Ente.prires Development A.t, 2006

For and otr hchalf ofthc Board olO ro.to6

Ma.ch 31,2022

(i) Principal amounuemaininS unpaid to l,,lSM E supplieu

(ii) lntercrtdueonunpaidprircipalamoonttotUStVEsoppliers

(iii) Ihe amount of interest paid alons with the amounrs of the
payment made to the MsME supplier9 beyond the appoinred

{iv) The amount ofinterestdue and payable for rhe year (without
addinSthe hterest under MSME Development Act)

(v) The amount of interest accrued and remaininsunpaid

(vi) Ihe amount of interest due and pavabieto be disallowed
unde.hcomeTaxA.t, 1961

11,57

1.21

1.27

7.21

7l1

Due5 to Mlcro and Small Enterpriser have been d€t.rmined to the extentsuch pa.ties have been identifed on rhe basis ofiniormaiion collected bythe
Md.dBF,_e 'r 'll- . hJ5 been r"[eo 

'por 
b\ l.e au. ro..

The fig!.es forprevrour year have been regrouped wherever ne.ess.ry to cdnform to current veafs cla$ificauon.

n tlris of o!rrerrortartrhed

9Q,

.""r"-q!WG4rvtONeera Saggi RahulD Asthana
Oirector oirecior

DIN No.00501029 DIN No.00214247

*k#
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